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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ST IRHEE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of CT Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present to
you a brief review of the business and financials of our Group
in 2013 and the same time the outlook of the sector in future.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HERAREBERAA
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FERESE (K)

“7¢F %
Etmb K
The Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts and

Professior mentators Limited 12th Anniversary :
' 'ing Listed Company Award

@Illﬂ.

B

cT Enulmmm:m.al Gmuo imited

With the utmost effort and commitment from our management ERBHEEEBR LS EBR X T ESR N
team and operation team, we achieved a satisfactory financial Z FTHI I BRARZZE—=ZFEWEB A
results for the year 2013. We recorded a turnover of 7 Bf 7% % 4% - ﬁz (E=SCra—F - 7%484 8H
HKD484.8 million, representing a 26.3% growth compared BEBT B_ZE - -FIEK26.3%- [@
with year 2012. At the same time, profit attributable to equity $ NAETRREMN G S E2448 8%
shareholders of the Company amounted to a record high of BB ZFIER26.6% LA E BTG

HKD224.4 million, representing a 26.6% growth compared Zﬁ SANSE BHERESZHEE 25
with year 2012. The above financial results are encouraging EEZ&RETEREFR0.03EBE T KA
and in order to share such success with the shareholders, the {0 B IE R R IE H IR ZIEETE - W
Board had resolved to declare a dividend of HKD0.03 per AR FEA|EZE 7 O

share. We are confident, and will strive to maintain such

growth trend in future in order to provide a fruitful return to our

shareholders.
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Year 2013 was undoubtedly a memorable year to our Group,
with various milestones being achieved. Firstly, in March 2013,
we obtained a sludge treatment licence which allowed us to
treat sludge generated from third party wastewater treatment
facilities and we subsequently commenced such service in
second half of 2013. Secondly, in September 2013, our
Group was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with net
proceeds of approximately HKD492.7 million being raised,
and our shares were well received by the capital market. In
addition to the above, we have been successful in securing
projects subsequent to our listing including the development
of a 50,000 m® wastewater treatment facility in Huaiji County,
Guangdong Province; an approval obtained from Longmen
County, Guangdong Province in relation to the construction of
sludge and solid waste treatment and usage facility; and the
acquisition of a sludge treatment facility in Heyuan City,
Guangdong Province in relation to sludge treatment service.

Looking forward, we expect more opportunities to come in
view of the continual favourable government policy in both
wastewater treatment and sludge treatment sectors and in
view of our Group’s execution ability and experience
accumulated in the past in dealing with wastewater and
sludge. We believed that syngery can be achieved by pursuing
an approach to expand in wastewater treatment segment and
sludge treatment segment at the same time since sludge is
actually a by-product coming out from wastewater treatment
process so that the availability of wastewater treatment
capacity represented a reliable source of sludge for the
operation of sludge treatment facilities.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #HEIRREBEBRAR

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FERESE (K)

The successful listing of the Company on 25 September 2013 A QAR —ZZE—=F N A =+ 7 B &K Ih 7= B
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange had marked anew XXk /' AXNEBEREARERDLEFR
era to our Group in terms of corporate brand and image & - -HHEREEMERESMERBENE LT
enhancement; broadened shareholder base and improved  NiRIEM HTEEE T FHLT ZEELBES
flexibility and choices in financing alternatives. These benefits ~ KEB#H — IR AT WEIZRE 2 WK - I
will further improve our Group’s ability in enhancing the # — I NEFZXOEKHBEBETFPRES
treatment service efficiency and further increase the possibility #0278 IE B 1 7] 821 -

of success in securing customers or acquiring projects in

relation to our core business.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my  £1& @ KA NER K e IO RS R AN D2
sincere gratitude to all shareholders and various stakeholders RERAKEBAA AN RZEHBEEHYRAEF
of our Group for the continuous support to our development HEE —BH4A THSE TERGFAEFL2 2
and | would also like to extend my appreciation for the hard B TRAERN{EH MR HFEFE -

work and contribution of the devoted staff of our Group during

the year.

TSUI Cham To EFSTE

Chairman of the Board ®EH

Hong Kong, 20 March 2014 HF —E—NWE=A=-+H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ST ETERHBRBRSNK

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

We are a provider of one-stop centralised and customised
wastewater treatment and industrial water supply services in
China, focusing on industrial wastewater treatment. Our
services cover the whole value chain of the wastewater
treatment and industrial water supply services industry, from
design planning, procurement and construction, to operations
and maintenance of the wastewater treatment and water
supply facilities. In addition, we had a recent plan to enter into
the sludge treatment services and such plan has been
materialised in the second half of 2013.

We focus on developing centralised and cost-efficient
wastewater treatment facilities for industrial parks or clusters.
Many local governments in China are increasingly promoting
the large-scale development of selected industries in the form
of specialised industrial parks or clusters. We expect this trend
to continue and intend to capitalise on the anticipated
industrial growth by actively seeking business opportunities in,
and further expanding our operations to, other parts of China.
We believe our strong track record in providing centralised
wastewater treatment and industrial water supply services
positions us well to capitalise on the continued industrial
growth in China. As part of our plans for expanding our
wastewater treatment services business, we intend to
continue our focus on industrial wastewater treatment
projects, with BOO (Build-Own-Operate) as our preferred
project model.

Our Company is the first provider of centralised wastewater
treatment services for textile and dyeing industries in
Guangdong province. In 2003, we commenced construction
of our flagship project, Guangzhou Xinzhou Industrial Park. In
view of its strong wastewater treatment capacity and
advanced technology, the Industrial Park was named “Key
National Model Project for Practical Technology in
Environmental Protection” (BIZX 28 2HIRRE R~ E5 T12)
by the China Environmental Protection Industry Association (Ff
BIRIBREESETE) in 2007 and 2012, respectively, and
was recognised by the Guangdong Province Environmental
Protection Industry Association in 2011 as a leading industrial
park with the largest centralised wastewater treatment
facilities in terms of treatment capacity for the textile industry
in the province.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HERAREBERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As of 31 December 2013, our facilities in operation have an
aggregate capacity of 365,000 m® per day for wastewater
treatment, 150,000 m® per day for industrial water supply and
approximately 138,000 tonnes per annum for sludge
treatment. In the near future, our overall capacity will be
enhanced by virtue of the soon completion of our Yonghe
Haitao Wastewater Treatment Facility (Phase lll) in the second
quarter of 2014, which will add a wastewater treatment
capacity of 50,000 m* per day. The overall capacity will also
be enhanced by (1) our Guangfozhao Project (Phase ) as
disclosed in our announcement dated 28 November 2013,
which involves the construction of a 50,000 m® wastewater
treatment facility for industrial and other wastewater. This
Project is expected to be ready for use by the end of 2014;
and (2) the approval obtained from a local government as
disclosed in our announcement dated 31 December 2013 in
respect of the investment and development of a sludge and
solid waste treatment facility in Longmen County of Huizhou
City, Guangdong Province.

We intend to continue to focus on providing centralised
industrial wastewater treatment and industrial water supply
services and seek to expand our operations organically to
increase our recurring earnings stream. We will continue to
focus on areas that have the potential of requiring centralised
treatment facilities, such as existing or potential specialised
industrial parks or clusters.
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In addition to our core business, which is the provision of
wastewater treatment services, we also intend to selectively
expand our operations into other areas of the waste treatment
industry such as sludge treatment service. It is estimated that
the total output of sludge in China will exceed 46 million
tonnes per annum by the end of 2015 from 23 million tonnes
per annum in 2010. Untreated sludge can cause severe
pollution to the environment. Our Group expects that the
imposition of stricter environmental protection requirements
on the sludge treatment industry will bring about business
opportunities.

Sludge is mainly generated from wastewater treatment
process and so, for the purpose of engaging in sludge
treatment business, the source of sludge is expected to be
stable and reliable since there are numerous wastewater
treatment plants existed in the market already. We believed
that not many of these wastewater treatment plants had been
equipped with the necessary sludge treatment equipment and
technology since the relevant sludge regulations were not
promulgated until recent years.

Currently, our Yonghe Haitao Sludge Treatment Facility is
treating sludge produced by: (1) Yonghe Haitao wastewater
treatment process; and (2) third party customers who are not
able to properly treat their sludge. We obtained the relevant
sludge treatment permit in March 2013 and had commenced
sludge treatment service to third party in the second half of
2013, with profit contribution to our 2013 profit of
approximately HKD11.5 million. We have also acquired a
company with a relevant license to treat sludge near the end
of 2013 which added a sludge treatment capacity of
approximately 65,000 tonnes per annum.

In recent years, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
Government has implemented various preferential policies to
encourage industries to move into developing regions in the
form of industrial parks or economic development zones. To
seize this opportunity, in addition to expanding our business
through organic growth, we will selectively seek mergers and
acquisitions opportunities at the same time with an aim to
further consolidate our market position and to reward
shareholders with outstanding results.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HERAREBERAA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

On 25 September 2013, the Company completed its Initial
Public Offering (“IPO”) on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, which marked a milestone for our Group. The net
proceeds from the IPO were approximately HKD492.7 million.
We believed that the successful listing will not only enhance
our shareholders’ base but will also enhance the financial
position and corporate brand of our Group, and these benefits
will in turn translate into greater profitability in future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

Our turnover increased by 26.3% to HKD484.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 from HKD383.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012. Such increase was primarily
due to (1) the ramping up of our heating services which
reflected in the volume of heat sold; (2) the commencement of
the Yonghe Haitao Wastewater Treatment Facility (Phase Il) in
April 2012, which in turn only generated a turnover of about
nine months for the year ended 31 December 2012. In
contrast, such facility contributed to the turnover for the whole
year for the year ended 31 December 2013; and (3) the
commencement of sludge treatment services in the second
half of 2013. The turnover generated from the industrial water
supply segment was relatively stable and we did not have any
construction revenue generated for the year ended 31
December 2013 since there were no BOT project under
construction.

More details of the Group’s performance for the year by
business segments is set out in note 2 to the financial
statements.

Cost of sales

Our total cost of sales increased by 36.0% to HKD178.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 from HKD131.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily due to
the (1) increased volume of heat purchased which is in turn
due to the increased demand from our customers; and (2)
Yonghe Haitao Wastewater Treatment Facility (Phase Il) which
commenced its operation in April 2012 and therefore have full
year cost contribution for the year ended 31 December 2013.
The above increase was partially offset by the decrease in the
average purchase cost of sulfuric acid, one of our major raw
materials used in wastewater treatment process.

THREFWES (&)

RZF-—=ZFNLA-+HB ARAZKE
REERZMERNERARMEE (TEHRAFHE
S WNAEEERERTHN —EEER
2 - BRARBEFRIEFRN427
BEBIT - HAABEAI LA T E R 3K
PIE B R AR - 71 & hnog 7 & B 1) B 755K
SRR R Tm%ﬂ%f o DN
rE(E/ESHNRNEE

Bt %5 B B8

SR

RPN EEEmEz T —F+=-A=
+— B |F £ E #383.8H & & I 1E 1126.3%
EHE-_FT—=Z=Ft+-_A=+—HLEFE

M4848H EB T AREIMEE AN
P9 9 L 20 AR 75 38 00 - S BT 35 & BAE IR N
@KMBESKEERE(ZH) N _-F—
“FEMARREE BERE-_T-_F1+=
A=+ - BLEFEEEEANDNEANERE
oMk - BE_T—=%t+-HA=+—H
LEE BEREERE2FLER: ROR
“E-ZFTHEFRRENSREER
AR ERMEEBOTHERIER MBE T —
—FT A=+ —HLEFE TERKHERE

DEEXBEHEYRE HIEFEEHE
Yoz e

ERAAEBENAFEREEDMEDEE
MEZFBENM B RERME2 -

$HE KA

RPN EEXNABREREEZE S ——-F+
A=t HIEEMISI4EE B TEM
BO0%EHE-_ZE—=F+-_A=+—81t
FEMITSTEES T TEAR)MKE
HAEEBMEEN DHARRMANE P % ki
K@ )ﬂ<ﬂ;‘ié%7kféfﬁuxm(_ﬁﬂ)ﬁ_
T-_FAMKEE AmMEZRE —=
¢+ A=Z+—BLEFEEHRS %¢&$ +
it 38 50 26 1 % AR R (T 1955 7K B8R 32 3B AR BT A
WE¢—EI£%M$H¥QR$&$ﬁQ
FTik 88 o

ANNUAL REPORT #3 2013



X 4

THREFWES (&)

Other revenue

Our other revenue increased substantially to HKD19.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2013 from HKDO.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily related to (i)
government grants in respect of 1) our contribution to the
sludge treatment sector; and 2) our listing exercise; and (i) an
compensation received in 2013 from a local government in
respect of the temporary suspension of one of our wastewater
treatment facilities in year 2012 (as disclosed in our
prospectus dated 12 September 2013).

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit increased by 21.3% to HKD306.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 from HKD252.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily as a result of the
factors described above.

Our overall gross profit margin decreased to 63.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2013 from 65.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2012, primarily due to the increase in the
turnover attributable to heating services, which has a relatively
lower gross profit margin, compared with wastewater
treatment segment.

General and Administrative expenses

Our general and administrative expenses increased by 87.0%
to HKD41.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013
from HKD22.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.
This was primarily due to the increase in one-off professional
fees and expenses incurred in connection with the IPO.

Finance costs

Our finance costs decreased by 12.9% to HKD32.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 from HKD37.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily due to the
repayment of part of our Group’s bank borrowings and
capitalising of certain finance costs into properties under
development for the year ended 31 December 2013 related to
the construction of Yonghe Haitao Wastewater Treatment
Facility (Phase lll).

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HERAREBERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Share of profit of an associate

Our share of profit of an associate decreased by 2.6% from
HKD23.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
HKD22.6 milion for the year ended 31 December 2013,
primarily due to the increase of the banking services charges
incurred relating to the drawdown of bank borrowings with a
principal amount of RMB200 million by that associate in 2013.
Such increase was partially offset by the increased revenue
which in turn due to increased volume treated.

Profit before taxation

Our profit before taxation increased by 28.3% to HKD273.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 from HKD213.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2012, primarily due to
the factors described above.

Income tax

Our income tax increased by 35.9% to HKD49.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 from HKD36.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012, which was primarily due
to the increase in the provision as a result of the increase in
the enterprise income tax rate for certain subsidiaries and due
to the increase in the amount of profit before taxation.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company

Our profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
has been increased by 26.6% to HKD224.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 from HKD177.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012, primarily as a result of the
factors described above.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Our principal liquidity and capital requirements primarily relate
to investments in our projects, acquisition of lease
prepayments, construction of our wastewater treatment and
industrial water supply facilities, purchases of equipment,
costs and expenses related to the operation and maintenance
of our facilities.
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As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of the Group’s
cash and bank deposits (including deposits with a bank with
original maturity date over three months) was approximately
HKD445.6 million (2012: HKD10.5 million), representing an
increase of 4,158.8% as compared to that as at 31 December
2012, which was mainly attributable to the proceeds received
from the IPO but have not been utilised. The cash and bank
deposits are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

USE OF THE NET PROCEEDS FROM THE
IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO amounted to approximately
HKD492.7 million. The use of proceeds has been consistent
with the disclosure in the prospectus of the Company dated
12 September 2013, and the respective use of the net
proceeds until 31 December 2013 is as follows:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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Net proceeds from IPO
BRAAHREMSRETHE

Available Used Unused
At EN A 28 REA
HKD million HKD million HKD million
BEET BEAT BEAETT
Construction and operation of R MK E T KR IR
wastewater treatment and K T ¥ MHKER M
industrial water supply facilities 342.0 14.8 327.2
Potential acquisition relating to the BRAEKERENITHE
wastewater treatment and oK M ) E 1
industrial water supply facilities I B8 49.3 — 49.3
Expansion into third party sludge BRAEFE=F)5
treatment business RIBFET 36.4 36.4 —
Improving research and RAMEEN
development capacity 15.7 0.3 15.4
Working capital and general EBEEE R K
corporate purpose ~alfAg 49.3 49.3 —
492.7 100.8 391.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

LOANS AND BORROWINGS

As of 31 December 2013, our total amount of utilised bank
loans was HKD552.2 million (2012: HKD599.4 million), and
we had no un-utilised banking facilities. These bank loans are
denominated in Renminbi. As all the bank loans are provided
by PRC banks, the interest rates are floating with respect to
the rate as stipulated by the People’s Bank of China.

These bank loans were secured and guaranteed by the
charging rights of industrial water supply turnover generated
from Guangzhou Kaizhou Water Supply Facility and the
charging rights of wastewater treatment turnover generated
from Guangzhou Xintao Wastewater Treatment Facility and
Yonghe Haitao Wastewater Treatment Facility, together with
our certain buildings and lease prepayments.

Our gearing ratio, as calculated by dividing our total
borrowings by our total assets, was 29.2%, as of 31
December 2013 (2012: 52.5%). The improved gearing ratio
was primarily due to the proceeds received from the IPO and
the repayment of certain bank borrowings.

More details of the bank loans and borrowings are set out in
note 22 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group together with the other
shareholders of Guangzhou Yinglong Wastewater Treatment
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Yinglong”), an associate in
which the Group held 46% equity interest, has issued a
guarantee to a bank in respect of a bank loan granted to
Guangzhou Yinglong.

The Directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against the Group under this guarantee arrangement as
Guangzhou Yinglong has sufficient working capital to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due after
considering the expected net cashflow from future operating
activities. The maximum liability of the Group as at 31
December 2013 under the guarantee arrangement is the
amount of the facilities drawn down by Guangzhou Yinglong
of HKD254.4 million (equivalent to RMB200 million).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013, the Group pledged certain of its
property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HKD14.5 million
(2012: HKD9.1 million) to certain banks to secure certain
credit facilities granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not
have any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associated companies and assets.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Our major capital expenditures expected consist primarily of
expenditures to acquire lease prepayments, construct
wastewater treatment facilities and purchase property, plant
and equipment. The expected capital expenditure will be
mainly funded by bank borrowing and funds generated from
our operating activities.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, our capital
expenditures mainly included additions in property, plant and
equipment and additions in lease prepayments (included
additions through acquisition of a subsidiary) amounted to
HKD279.2 million (2012: HKD61.2 million). These capital
expenditures were funded by bank borrowings, funds
generated from our operating activities and capital
contributions from our shareholders through the IPO.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Individual companies within the Group have limited foreign
currency risk as most of the transactions are denominated in
the same currency as the functional currency of the operations
in which they relate. However, as the principal subsidiaries
mainly carried out transactions in RMB, therefore any
appreciation or depreciation of HKD against RMB will affect
the Group’s financial position and be reflected in the exchange
reserve. There were no hedging transactions outstanding as
at 31 December 2013.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HERAREBERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group employed 488
employees. Employee costs amounted to approximately
HKD22.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
approximately HKD17.1 million). The Group will endeavor to
ensure that the employees’ salary levels are in line with
industry practice and prevailing market conditions and that
employees’ remuneration is based on their performance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ST EERERTEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSUI Cham To, aged 47, is one of the founders of our
Group, and chairman and executive Director of our Company.
He was appointed as an executive Director on 30 November
2010. He is a brother of Mr. Xu Zi Tao and is a cousin of Mr.
Xu Ju Wen. Mr. Tsui is mainly responsible for all major affairs
of our Group, including business development, marketing and
strategic formulation. Mr. Tsui has approximately 11 years of
experience in the wastewater treatment and industrial water
supply industry. Mr. Tsui was the vice president of the
Guangdong Foundation for Justice and Courage (BR &A%
HE&=). From April 2000 to March 2001 and April 2002 to
March 2006, Mr. Tsui was a director of Hong Kong Yan Chai
Hospital. Mr. Tsui was also an adviser to the Board of
Directors of the Scientific Decision and Promotion Association
of Guangdong Province Village and Town Heads in 2004. Mr.
Tsui was appointed the chair professor at Faculty of
Management of Shenzhen University. Furthermore, Mr. Tsui
was the vice president of the Guangzhou Overseas Chinese
Chamber of Commerce in 2006 as well as the vice president
of the 10th, 11th and 12th Zengcheng Federation of
Commerce and Industry (IGm IR EBMASE#RE). He
was a member of the Standing Committee of the 6th, 7th and
8th sessions of Zengcheng City Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (IE3HEN ~ + - \EFEARIK
BRI ERIEMTmEZEEEZ) and was named an excellent
member (B35 Z 8) in the sessions of 2007 and 2010,
respectively. He was also a member of the Standing
Committee of the 9th session of the Huizhou City Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference (B #3277 26 11/
ZB8&<8). In addition, Mr. Tsui was an honorary citizen of
the Guangzhou Municipality and Huizhou Municipality as well
as the honorary chairman of the 8th Committee of the
Federation of the Zengcheng City Returned Chinese (3% T
EEREGHE A ®). Mr. Tsui did not hold directorship in other
listed public companies in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LU Yili, aged 39, is an executive Director and managing
director of our Company. He joined us in June, 2010 and was
appointed as an executive Director on 12 January 2011. Mr.
Lu is mainly responsible for overseeing our Group’s external
financing issues, dealing with potential investors as well as
development of our business and asset restructuring program.
Mr. Lu also has experience in corporate investment and
business finance and has involved in the listing of Chinese
companies on an overseas stock exchange. He also has four
years of experience in the wastewater treatment industry.
From 1997 to 2009, Mr. Lu served as a member of the
management of various Singapore private companies,
responsible for venture capital investments and consultancy
on initial public offerings in China. Mr. Lu received a bachelor’s
degree in science majoring in chemistry at the National
University of Singapore in 1997. Mr. Lu did not hold
directorship in other listed public companies in the past three
years.

Mr. XU Ju Wen, aged 39, is an executive Director and vice
president of our Group. He joined us in September, 2003 and
has served as an executive Director since 12 January 2011.
Mr. Xu is a cousin of Mr. Tsui and Mr. Xu Zi Tao. Mr. Xu is
mainly responsible for all major affairs of our Group, including
business development, marketing, strategic formulation and
inter-departmental coordination. From 2001 to 2005, Mr. Xu
has been the assistant general manager of Guangzhou To
Kee Enterprises Development Group Limited (“Guangzhou To
Kee”), a related company of our Group, where he oversaw its
general operation. From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Xu was the
general manager of Guangzhou Zhugang Pier Company
Limited (BJINERIMESSEHRAF]), a private company in the
PRC, and from 2009 to 2011, Mr. Xu has been its executive
director. In 2010, Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor's degree in
accountancy from Open University of China (1 R B iEE 15 KE).
Mr. Xu did not hold directorship in other listed public
companies in the past three years.
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Mr. XU Shu Biao, aged 48, is one of the founders of our
Group and an executive Director. He was appointed as an
executive Director on 12 January 2011. Mr. Xu has
approximately 11 years of experience in the wastewater
treatment industry. Mr. Xu is our chief operating officer, mainly
responsible for the construction and implementation of the
projects which our Company undertakes. Mr. Xu is also
responsible for the start-up and development of our
Company’s operation team as well as staff recruitment. Mr.
Xu is also experienced in the engineering, trade and
processing industries. Mr. Xu was an assistant general
manager at Guangzhou To Kee from 1995 to 2003. Mr. Xu
has led the development, operation and management of our
wastewater treatment facilities and industrial water supply
facilities in our Guangzhou Xinzhou Industrial Park since 2003.
Mr. Xu is not related to Mr. Tsui. Mr. Xu did not hold
directorship in other listed public companies in the past three
years.

Mr. XU Zi Tao, aged 44, is an executive Director. He joined
us in September, 2003 and was appointed as an executive
Director on 12 January 2011. He is the brother of Mr. Tsui
and a cousin of Mr. Xu Ju Wen. Mr. Xu has approximately
9 years of experience in wastewater treatment industry.
Currently, Mr. Xu is responsible for our Group’s safety
compliance and public services works, including liaising with
local neighborhoods regarding infrastructure development.
Mr. Xu was a manager at Guangzhou To Kee from 1994 to
2008. Since 2003, he has been an assistant general manager
at our wastewater treatment facilities and industrial water
supply facilities in our Guangzhou Xinzhou Industrial Park,
where he managed the operation and development of these
companies. Mr. Xu did not hold directorship in other listed
public companies in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XU Zhen Cheng, aged 60, was appointed on 14 June
2011 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Xu has
approximately 35 years of experience in the research and
engineering practice of environmental science and engineering
technology, specializing in the research and engineering
technology development of pollution control systems. With the
technical title of Research Associate, Mr. Xu held various
positions in the academia, such as the Director of Chinese
Society for Environmental Science and Environmental risks
Professional Committee, the Supervisor to doctorate students
at Hunan Agricultural University (#1F8 2 % X&), the Director
of the National Science and Technology Major Project “Water
pollution control and treatment” (7K8&)5 4T H|815518) of
Dongjiang Project. Mr. Xu mainly engaged in environmental
and related interdisciplinary research, scientific research
projects assumed in recent years including but not limited to:

° the “Dongjiang Water Quality and Ecological Risk Control
and Technology Integration and Demonstration” (88,17
17K B B /K A B [ B 1R Il R T R B BRAR & TR D),

° the “Dongjiang Water Pollution Control and Ecological
Health Maintenance and Technology Demonstration”
(FRUT/KF05 45 i BR/K A BB FR A H5 B4R & TR ),

° Investigation of Environmental Health in Key National
Regions (2B & Bt [& IRIF B R FIEHAE);

° Research on Assessment and Accounting System of
Agricultural Pollution Emission Reduction Technology

(BRI B)SRRISEHIBRMTE RAZE LR RF);

° Subtropical Agricultural Pollution Control Technology
System (3B 275 2 505 2 R AR G TR 9E);

° Emergency handling for Pollution Incident at Long River,
He River, Guangxi (BFage/ T ~ B Lo hEHE2EE L
8);

° Assessment of the Environmental Impact of the
Cadmium Pollution Incident at North River, Guangdong
(U5 R ESTIIE);
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o Environmental Planning of the Pearl River Delta/
Guangdong Province (BT = AN/ ER A RIEHRE);

° Pearl River Valley Water Pollution Prevention Plan
ER LRI AT AR E;

e New Era National Environment Strategy Research
(s B B 21 38 55 B BR A 9);

e  National Ecological Progress Strategy Research (BIZ 4=
REX BRFE SR B IR IR 7T);

° Water Quality Improvement and Ecological Restoration
Technology Research and Demonstration (7KIz 35 8 24
= H A BB IR BN 7 AR & TR 8D);

o Advanced River Water Purification Technology Research
BKE F s b Bl

and Engineering Demonstration (/A3
95 B TF2 R &0);

° Massive City Waste Incineration Electricity Generating
Equipment Improvement and Industrialization Research

(R EIR IR R E R FR S RIS T 55).

Mr. Xu has received a total of 21 science and technology
awards at national, provincial and ministerial levels. He was
also bestowed a special government allowance for his
outstanding contribution to the national science research by
the State Council in 1992, the title as Outstanding Worker of
the Environmental Science and Technology Research and
Development by the Ministry of Environmental Protection of
the PRC in 1996, the “Ding Ying Science and Technology
Award” by Guangdong Province (EE & T f8RH%48) in 1999
and the title of Outstanding Worker of the National
Environmental Protection System by the HR department of
the Ministry of Environmental Protection of the PRC (at both
provincial and ministerial levels) in 2000. Mr. Xu graduated
from Sun Yat-Sen University (7 [1X&) in 1980 majoring in
geography. Mr. Xu did not hold directorship in other listed
public companies in the past three years.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HERAREBERAA

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

° HI= %/)H/ =R AIRERE

. TR KI5 a 82

o K HIBIFIRITBAAII

e BIXRARXHARRKRBENE:

SmENRE
TE

e IKIRIE B A RS 18 B 1T i 3R

B &

e JAE/KEF/bBL M EE TR
&

s ABMBHTNEREEETR
WA -

BRI R

GRS PP ST LB TS
ﬁﬁ#*hh‘iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ
PRI BREHOLE R~ ANSEESF

BIRBIRER R B IRRBI AT RE TIE
EWRE R-—NANNFEREREHEEIT A

Mt DER - TZETFEREARRR
E%a‘ﬁ)\%ﬁﬁ(%‘i&&ﬁﬁi&)ﬁﬁﬁéﬁi;%;i:%{%
ERGEETHEERE FLEER-NANE
E%%EAEPHJKﬂiMEﬁ%ﬁHEEEM@E
—HFUVEEFEMETARARNES -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LIU Yung Chau, aged 60, was appointed on 14 June
2011 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Liu is a
director of Yue Hua Group Company Limited and Guangzhou
Sun City Group Limited. Mr. Liu was the chief president of the
Hong Kong Industrial & Commercial General Association,
member of the standing committee of Guangdong Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, member of the
standing committee of Guangdong Federation of Industry,
vice chairman of the Guangdong Chamber of Foreign
Investors and chairman of the Zengcheng Federation of
Industry. In addition, Mr. Liu has been awarded the “World
Outstanding Chinese Award” (it 54EH # A %) in May 2010
and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia (BBS) by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
on 25 October 2013. Mr. Liu has established the Guangzhou
Sun City Group Limited and its affiliates covers a wide range
of business areas including education, hotel and tourism,
textile and apparel, real estate and financial investment
industry. Mr. Liu was given the honorary title of “May 1st
Model Worker” in 2009. Mr. Liu did not hold directorship in
other listed public companies in the past three years.

Mr. LIEN Jown Jing, Vincent, aged 53, was appointed on
15 April 2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Lien is currently a director of Wah Hin & Company, a
Singapore incorporated private investment holding company,
an independent non-executive director of Focus Media
Network Limited (stock code: 8112), Viva China Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8032) (both of which are listed on The
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange and UP
Energy Development Group Limited (stock code: 0307) which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). Mr. Lien is
also a director of The Maritime and Port Authority of Singapore
and a non-executive director of Primeline Energy Holdings Inc.
(@ company listed in Canada). He has over 26 years of
experience in the banking industry, specialized in corporate
finance and capital management. Mr. Lien graduated from the
University of New Brunswick with a Bachelor Degree in
business administration. Mr. Lien started his career in the
financial industry first in Merrill Lynch & Company. In the past
years, Mr. Lien had been working in senior positions in
prestige financial institutions such as Swiss Bank Corporation
and Bankers Trust & Company. In year 2000, he became the
director of Wah Hin & Company, managing the financial
assets of the group. He also served as the Managing Director
in the Financial Institutions & Public Sector division of ABN
AMRO Bank from 2007 to 2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SIT Hon Wing, aged 37, is our chief financial officer and
company secretary. He is mainly responsible for overseeing
our Group’s financial and company secretarial matters. Mr. Sit
joined us in 2008. He left us in April 2010 and starting from
June 2010 served China Railsmedia Corporation Limited (Stock
code: 745) as its financial controller and company secretary.
Mr. Sit re-joined us in December 2010. From 1999 to 2002,
he worked in the audit and assurance department of
PricewaterhouseCoopers in Hong Kong. Mr. Sit has also
served as the financial controller and company secretary of
certain listed companies in Hong Kong. From June 2006 to
January 2008, Mr. Sit was the financial controller and
company secretary of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8200). From December 2002 to November 2005, he
was the financial controller of Code Agriculture (Holdings)
Limited (formerly known as China Chief Cable TV Group
Limited (stock code: 8153)). Mr. Sit received a bachelor’'s
degree in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1999 and he has been a fellow member of both
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA) and Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) since January 2003 and May 2004, respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. HUANG Rong Zhou, aged 65, is our technology and
research & development director. Mr. Huang joined us in
November 2010 and is currently responsible for the
technological research, development and innovation for our
Group. His duties include liaising with relevant technological
research organizations, assisting in our application for projects
sponsored by the PRC Government and patent applications.
He attained the qualification of senior environmental engineer
in November 1994 after passing the assessment of
Guangdong Province Environmental Protection Engineer
Technology Senior Workers Assessment Committee (R A
REREIERMASRABBTIEEZES). He is a two-
time leader of PRC national working groups investigating
environmental protection research topics, for example, he is
one of the authors of the research papers titled The Study of
Material Corrosion by Acid Rain in Guangzhou ( € EM i [& B
MEMEEaRRTZE) ) and The Study of the Relationships
between Acid Rain and Meteorological Conditions in
Guangzhou ( (E/NBARVERRRGMHRIR) ), which were
awarded the Guangzhou environmental protection technology
second honours (BIMNTIRIBRERTE P8 — F48) for the
year of 1991. In particular, Mr. Huang was the engineer of
Guangzhou City Environmental Inspection Centre Station (&
MRS ELAIF ) from 1983 to 1992, as well as the
assistant chief of Yuexiu District Environmental Protection
Bureau (HFRIRERER) from 1997 to 2002. He was also
engaged as a researcher in Yuexiu District Environmental
Protection Bureau (#FF&IRIE(RER) in 2008, and was
qualified as a state cleaner production auditor in 2009. In
addition, Mr. Huang was engaged by various associations to
participate in roles that are related to environmental protection,
including:

° as a special contributor by Zhujiang Environment News ( ¥k
TIRIZER) ) in 1995,

° as the speaker of Professors of Systems, Technology,

Commumcahons and Operations Group (R#& R {EE

1182 E) by Guangzhou Yuexiu Bureau Of Education
(Ed‘l‘lﬁ@%ﬁﬁkﬁ)ﬁ) in 1997,

° as the member of Yuexiu Science Report Group (55
RlE#R4E) by Yuexiu Association For Science and
Technology (#55 @ B2 #1713 &) in 2000,
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o as Vice President by Yuexiu Fifth Administrative
Committee of the Environmental Science Association (i
FEIBEHNEE2EREEEE) from April 2002 to
April 2004 and the committee member of Yuexiu
Thirteenth Standing Committee on Environment and
Resources Protection of Urban and Rural Construction (i
FRETZEARNFZSUMBERRERERRETIE
ZE8)in 2003.

He was the honorary president and technology adviser to
Environmental Protection Association of Yuexiu district,
Guangzhou (BN #ERIBRE XD E) from 2005 to 2008.
In 1965, Mr. Huang graduated from Chengdu Institute of
Meteorology (A #B& % %) with a certificate in Meteorological
Communication (SRZBE).

Mr. ZHAO Ke Yin, aged 39, is our chief engineer. Mr. Zhao
joined us in March 2004 and is currently responsible for the
daily operation, technical supervision and implementation of
our Group. Mr. Zhao is responsible for implementing national
policies relating to technology and advanced technology
management policies. Mr. Zhao has approximately 10 years
of experience in wastewater treatment, with a special focus
on industrial wastewater treatment technology. He is also
responsible for leading the implementation technical aspects
of our Group’s projects, devising work plans to ensure quality
assurance and compliance with various industry technical
standards, regulations and procedures. Mr. Zhao is our
Group’s key liaison with regulatory authorities. In 1998, Mr.
Zhao obtained a diploma in environmental protection
monitoring and implementation from Shenyang Polytechnic
University (%[5 T#E67). He obtained a wastewater
treatment training certificate issued by Guangdong
Environmental Association Environmental Protection
Vocational Training Centre (&5 IR iz RE%kFE B AEESFIH L)),
He has also passed the environmental protection training
accredited by Guangzhou Environmental Protection Promotion
and Education Centre (BIMNTIRFERESEHEF L) and
Guangzhou Environmental Protection Bureau (E/NMHIRER
#R).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to maintain good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company has
adopted the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”) as its own code of corporate governance. The
Board considers that the Company was in compliance with all
applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code from 25
September 2013, being the listing date of the Company on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”), to 31 December
2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises five Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors. The Directors who held
office during the year and up to the date of publication of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Cham To
Mr. Lu Yili

Mr. Xu Ju Wen
Mr. Xu Shu Biao
Mr. Xu Zi Tao

(Chairman)
(Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham (resigned on 15 April 2014)
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent (appointed on 15 April 2014)

Mr. Liu Yung Chau
Mr. Xu Zhen Cheng
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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The list of Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and the website of the Stock Exchange, and is
disclosed in all corporate communications issued by the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

The Board has a balance of skill, experience and diversity of
perspectives that are essential to and would promote the
business of the Group. The Board, with the assistance from
the senior management, forms the core management team of
the Company. The Board takes the overall responsibility for
management of the Company, formulating the business
strategies development plan of the Company, decision making
on important issues, including but not limited to substantial
mergers and acquisitions and disposals,
appointments and significant operational and financial matters.
The senior management are responsible for supervising and
executing the Board policies and strategies, including the
provision of updates of the Group’s performance to the Board
to enable the Board to deliver and discharge their duties. Daily
management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the senior management of the Company.

directors’

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013,
the Board at all times met the requirements under Rules 3.10 (1)
and (2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules that, at least one-third
of members of the Board being Independent Non-executive
Directors, with at least one Independent Non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The
Board considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors
have appropriate and sufficient industry or finance experience
and qualifications to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The biographies of all the Directors are set out in the Directors
and Senior Management Section of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
are Mr. Tsui Cham To and Mr. Lu Yili respectively. The roles of
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
and assumed by two separate individuals. It is aimed at
striking a balance of power and authority so that the job
responsibilities are not concentrated on any one individual.
The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and effective
running of the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is
delegated with the authorities to manage the business of the
Group in all aspects effectively.

The Company has received confirmations of independence
from all existing Independent Non-executive Directors and
considers them independent, in accordance with Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. All Directors have a term of office of three
years and are required to retire and, being eligible, can offer
themselves for re-election in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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BOARD MEETINGS

It is intended that the Board should meet regularly so that all
Directors are kept updated with the business development of
the Group. Special meetings of the Board will be convened if
the situation requires so. For the period from the Listing Date

EEEEE

REFS EXCTREHEFASHANENRE
EETHENAKRENZBER -HBERS
Z - EFeKAHABNEZ - -BLHAYE
—E-ZF+-A=t—RH EFeHAEH

to 31 December 2013, the Board had convened two Board MAiEZHee® MEESELESHMND
meetings and the individual attendance record of the Directors ~ §E 40 T
is tabulated as follows:
Attendance/
Total number of
meetings
RE BBRERE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Tsui Cham To (Chairman) RmEBEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Lu Yili (Chief Executive Officer) BE & E(TTEHAES) 2/2
Mr. Xu Ju Wen WEX T E 2/2
Mr. Xu Shu Biao R LA 2/2
Mr. Xu Zi Tao BRTFBEE 2/2
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham MREBEER-_F—MF
(resigned on 15 April 2014) /M A+ & HEHE) 1/2
Mr. Lien Jown Jing ,Vincent, EBEREEER=-_F—MmF
(appointed on 15 April 2014) P9 A+ A HE /f ) 0/0
Mr. Liu Yung Chau Btk E 1/2
Mr. Xu Zhen Cheng FFIR K e & 1/2
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS EEETEEFERS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securiies A~ A &) B2 B 49 £ 1 % A i 8% 10FT 8 & H i

Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors. Having made
specific enquiry, the Company confirms that the Directors
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

RELATIONSHIP AMONG THE DIRECTORS

Among the members of the Board, Mr. Tsui Cham To, the
Chairman, is a brother of Mr. Xu Zi Tao and is a cousin of Mr.
Xu Ju Wen (therefore Mr. Xu Zi Tao is also a cousin of Mr. Xu
Ju Wen).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up an Audit Committee in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, for the purpose of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. As of the date of
publication of this report, the Audit Committee comprises the
three Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent (the chairman of the
Audit Committee). Mr. Liu Yung Chau and Mr. Xu Zhen
Cheng. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial information for the year ended 31
December 2013, including the accounting principles adopted
by the Group, with the Company’s management. The Audit
Committee, together with the management, has reviewed
constantly the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters and reviewed the financial results of the
Group.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the website of the Company and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

The Audit Committee had held one meeting during the period
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013 for considering
the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30
June 2013. All the members of the Audit Committee have
attended the above meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of the Company for remuneration of all Directors and
senior management, and to review and recommend to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Director and senior management, by reference to the duties,
responsibilities, experience and qualifications of each
candidate.

In accordance with the written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, majority of members of the
Remuneration Committee should be Independent Non-
executive Directors, and the chairman must be an
Independent Non-executive Director. The terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee are available on the
Company’s website and the website of the Stock Exchange.
During the period from the establishment of the Remuneration
Committee to 31 December 2013, Mr. Xu Zhen Cheng
(Chairman), Mr. Liu Yung Chau and Mr. Tsui Cham To are
members of the Remuneration Committee. One meeting was
held by the Remuneration Committee during the period from
the Listing Date to 31 December 2013 to review and approve
the remuneration packages of certain executive Directors. All
members of the Remuneration Committee have attended the
meeting.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management
of the Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2013
is set out below:

FMHMEES

FHZEEeNIZRERRNESTEES
REMBEERSREEABNFHB R
LRE R2EEEREAZBE BT &
BLRERMEZEEZNTEZTLSIAE
BABRHMTE -

REFHEZEENEORERE FHEZE
ENEZHKERARBIUFNTES MER

WERRBIFNTES FTHEESHBE
HETRARAFRBRAHAELEERN - R E
SMEEBEERIE_ZE—=F+-A=+
—BEE SRR EE(ERF) BERpEE
kipEBEERTFMEEGEXE - B LEMA
HE—"T-—=ZF+_-F=+—8 515 &M
ZEERBT-RgRUBRITLIES T
BITESNHFMNES - FTHEESHNEZEK
BHELEEZREE -

BE_T-=%+-_A=+—BLFE &
SERREEEKBNHMMARHINMT

Number of

persons

Remuneration bands (HK$) % B 4% Bl (38 7T) AE
Nil to 500,000 = % 500,000 2

500,000 to 1,000,000 500,000 £ 1,000,000
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board had set up its Nomination Committee to, among
others, review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors. As at the date of publication of this
report, Mr. Liu Yung Chau (Chairman), Mr. Lien Jown Jing,
Vincent and Mr. Tsui Cham To are members of the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee has also
adopted a policy of diversity for memberships of the Board
which aims to achieve diversity in the Board against a range
of different perspectives, including but not limited to
professional and industry experience, skills and knowledge,
cultural and educational background. These criteria will be
considered in determining the optimum composition of the
Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately.
In reviewing and assessing the composition of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider all different perspectives,
including the aforesaid criteria, in order to maintain a diverse
Board. And when recommending new appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on
merit against objective criteria including the ones set out
above, with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the
Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the website of the Company and the website of
the Stock Exchange.

No meeting of the Nomination Committee had been held for
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2013.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The Company recognizes the importance of keeping the
Directors updated with latest information of duties and
obligations of a director of a company which shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange and the general regulatory
requirements and environment for such listed company. To
meet this goal, each newly appointed Director would receive
an introductory training regarding the statutory and regulatory
obligations of a director of a listed company in Hong Kong.
The Company would also provide regular updates in relation
to the latest developments regarding Listing Rules and other
applicable regulations.

During the course of listing approval process in the year 2013,
the Company’s legal advisor had conduct a thorough training
to the Directors regarding the role and responsibility as a
director and all relevant Listing Rules requirements related to
the position as a director. All of the Directors have attended
the training.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Board is entrusted with an overall responsibility of
devising the Company’s system of internal controls and
conducting an annual review of its effectiveness. This ensures
that the Board oversees and monitors the Group’s overall
financial position so that the interests of the shareholders are
well protected and covered. The system of internal controls
covers the areas of financial, accounting, operational,
compliance and risk management of the Group’s business.

During the course of listing approval process in the year 2013,
the Company had engaged an external professional firm to
conduct a review on the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Company and its major subsidiaries and
considered that the internal control system are effective. The
Board was not aware of any irregularities or material
deficiencies found during the period from the Listing Date to
31 December 2013.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

With reference to the prospectus of the Company dated 12
September 2013, it was stated that our one of our wastewater
treatment project — Guangzhou Yinglong, had not yet passed
checking and acceptance by the Ministry of Environmental
Protection. Subsequently, we have obtained written approval
from the Ministry of Environmental Protection on 30 December
2013.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT ON FINANCIAL
REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
Board is accountable to the shareholders for a clear and
balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position and
prospects.

The management provides all relevant information and records
to the Board, which enable it to prepare the accounts and to
make above assessments. The Audit Committee had reviewed
and recommended the Board to adopt the audited accounts
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The Board is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to the events or
condition that may undermine the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The statement of the auditor of
the Company on its reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Auditor’s Report on
pages 51 and 52.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the fees payable
to KPMG in respect of its audit services provided to the Group
was HKD1.6 million. The total fees paid and payable to KPMG
during the year for the reporting accountant service in respect
of the IPO was approximately HKD4.4 million.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company’s shareholders’ communication policy is to
maintain transparency and provide timely information of the
Group’s material developments to shareholders and investors.
General meetings of the Company are formal channels for
communication between shareholders and the Board. The
chairman of the Board is invited to attend the general
meetings to have direct communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meeting of the Company may by written requisition
request to the Board convene at an extraordinary general
meeting. There are no provisions under the Company’s
articles of association governing shareholder’s right to put
forward proposals at general meetings. However, the
shareholders may follow the procedures as stated below to
put forward proposals in general meetings. The procedures
for shareholders to convene extraordinary general meetings
and put forward proposal are as follows:

1. The requisitionist(s) must sign a written request stating
the objects of the meeting to be convened, and deposit
the same at the principal place of business of the
Company situated at Room 1202B, 12/F, Empire
Centre, 68 Mody Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
written request may consist of several documents in like
form, each signed by one or more requisitionist(s).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

2. The Company will then verify the particulars of the
requisitionist(s) in their written request with the
Company’s share registrar, and upon confirmation from
the Company’s share registrar that the written request is
in order, the Company Secretary will arrange with the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders
in accordance with all the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements and the provisions in the articles
of association of the Company.

3. Inthe event that the written request has been verified as
not in order, the shareholders concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, an extraordinary
general meeting will not be convened as requested.

4. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of
the deposit of the written request proceed duly to
convene an extraordinary general meeting for a day not
more than 28 days after the date on which the notice
convening the meeting is given, the requisitionist(s), or
any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an
extraordinary general meeting, but any extraordinary
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of 3 months from the date of deposit of the
written request.

The Company continues to pursue a proactive policy of
promoting investor relations and communications by
conducting analysts’ briefings, road shows, participating in
investors’ conferences and making corporate presentations
during the conferences, arranging company visits to the
Company and maintaining regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and analysts. The Company’s annual general
meeting provides a good opportunity for communications
between the Board and its shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to express their view and make enquiries on the
business or operation of the Company.
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The investor relations department of the Company in Hong
Kong maintains regular communication and dialogue with
shareholders, investors and analysts. It can be accessed
during normal business hour by phone (Telephone: 852
2527 9777). Shareholders and investors can also visit the
Company’s website at www.chongto.com and the Stock
Exchange’s website for the Company’s announcements,
circulars, financial information, corporate governance
practices, annual reports, interim reports and other corporate
information and updates of business development and
operations.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to a special resolution of the shareholders of the
Company passed on 4 September 2013, the amended
memorandum and articles of association of the Company
were adopted with effect from the Listing Date. Save as
disclosed above, there was no change in the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2013.

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of

association of the Company are available on the website of
the Stock Exchange and the website of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

The Company has entered into a deed of non-competition
dated 4 September 2013 (the “Non-competition Deed”) with
Keen Vast Holdings Limited and Mr. Tsui Cham To, both
being the controlling shareholders of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholders”), pursuant to which the Controlling
Shareholders procure that its/his/her associates (other than
members of our Group) not to, engage in any business
involving the development of wastewater treatment facilities
and the provision of wastewater treatment and industrial water
supply services. Details of the Non-competition Deed are set
out in the paragraph headed “Non-competition Undertaking”
in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the prospectus of the Company dated 12
September 2013.

The Company has received the annual confirmation from the
Controlling Shareholders in compliance with the terms of the
Non-competition Deed. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed the annual confirmation from the
Controlling Shareholders relating to the compliance with the
non-competition undertaking by the Controlling Shareholder
under the Non-competition Deed and are satisfied that the
same has been complied with by the Controlling Shareholders
under the Non-competition Deed.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EFEHE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15
to the financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year by business segments is set out in
note 2 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit and loss on page 53. The
Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of

HK3.0 cents per share, totalling approximately
HKD41,462,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent
the share premium, contributed surplus and retained earnings
which in aggregate amounted to HKD547.9 million as at 31
December 2013. Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its articles of association and provided that
immediately following the distribution or payment of dividend
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results for the year ended and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2013 and for
the previous three financial years are set out on page 168.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of publication of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsui Cham To (Chairman)

Mr. Lu Yili (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Xu Ju Wen

Mr. Xu Shu Biao

Ms. Xu Zi Tao

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham (resigned on 15 April 2014)
Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent (appointed on 15 April 2014)

Mr. Liu Yung Chau
Mr. Xu Zhen Cheng
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In accordance with Article 83(3) and 84 of the Company’s
articles of association, Mr. Tsui Cham To, Mr. Lu Yili, Mr. Xu
Shu Biao and Mr. Lien Jown Jing, Vincent will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director a confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
the Company considers such directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has entered or has
proposed to enter into any service agreements with the
Company or any other member of the Group which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year except as disclosed under the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” and note 30 to
the financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management as of the date of publication of this report are
set out on pages 18 to 26.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2013, the Directors and chief executives
of the Company and their associates had the following
interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code:
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Tsui Cham To is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
877,200,000 shares of the Company held by Keen Vast
Holdings Limited.

(2)  Mr. Lu Yili is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
20,400,000 shares of the Company held by Great Nation
Finance Limited.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained by
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or which had been notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. At no
time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies, its subsidiaries or its fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors and chief executives
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or its associated corporation.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 4 September 2013. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive to motivate,
attract and retain eligible persons, and to encourage them to
optimise their performance efficiency, enhance the value of
the Company and promote the long-term growth of the
Company. This scheme will provide the eligible participants,
including employees, consultants, executives and officers of
the Company, to have a personal stake in the Company to
achieve its intended purpose.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 4 September 2013, after which no
further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of
the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
subsisting options granted prior to the expiry of the 10-year
period or otherwise as may be required in accordance with
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 136,000,000, being 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue immediately after IPO on the
Listing Date (i.e. 25 September 2013) which is the effective
date of such scheme and representing approximately 9.8% of
the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this
annual report.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any eligible person
under the Share Option Scheme shall not in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company from time to time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to the issue of a
circular and shareholders’ approval in general meeting. The
period within which an option may be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme will be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion, save that no option may be exercised
later than 10 years from the date of grant of the particular
option. Under the Share Option Scheme, the exercise price in
relation to each option shall be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than the
highest of () the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of such option, (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
such option, and (jii) the nominal value of a share on the date
of grant of such option.

No share options were granted under the Share Option
Scheme by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2013 and there were no outstanding share options under the
Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2013.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the persons (not being a Director or
chief executive of the Company) who have interests in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
or have otherwise notified to the Company were as follows:
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Approximate

Total number of percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares shareholding

% #E
EEER B EntE R 17 48 & BMOBDE
Keen Vast Holdings Limited“’ Beneficial owner 877,200,000 (L) 63.47%

BAEBRBRA EDEAA

(L)  denotes a long position
Note:

(1) Keen Vast Holdings Limited is controlled by Mr. Tsui Cham To.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the
Directors are not aware of any other person having an interest
or short position in shares and underlying shares of the
Company representing 5% or more of the issued share capital
of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company did not enter into any contract
in respect of the management or administration of the entire
business or any significant business of the Group nor any
such contract subsisting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report of the Directors:

(i) no contract of significance between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries subsisted during the
year or at the end of the year; and

(i)  no contract of significance for the provision of services
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
subsisted during the year or at the end of the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
86.2% (2012: 80.0%) of the Group’s total cost of purchase for
the year ended 31 December 2013. The largest supplier
accounted for approximately 58.3% (2012: 59.2%) of the
Group’s total cost of purchase for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 37.1% (2012: 38.6%) of the Group’s total
turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013. The largest
customer accounted for approximately 9.6% (2012: 12.1%) of
the Group’s total turnover for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, none of the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had an interest in these major suppliers or customers at all
times.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors had any interest in any competing
business with the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year ended 31 December 2013.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ETEHE (W)

The Controlling Shareholders of the Company have confirmed
to the Company that they have complied with the non-
competition undertaking under the Non-competition Deed.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements also constituted continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules which are required to be
disclosed in this report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 12
September 2013, Guangzhou Haitao Environmental Protection
Technology Company Limited (“Guangzhou Haitao”), a
subsidiary of our Group, has been providing wastewater
treatment services to Guangzhou Tian Tian Cleaning and
Washing Company Limited (a company controlled by Mr. Tsui
Cham To who is a Director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company) (“Tian Tian”) as part of its ordinary and usual
course of business. The agreement was entered into on 4
September 2013. The transactions under this agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for our Company
which are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the amount of
wastewater treatment services provided by Guangzhou Haitao
to Tian Tian was approximately HKD4.7 million.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the agreement entered into on terms
which are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party transaction
or continuing related party transaction as set out in note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements that falls under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or the laws of Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 25 September 2013 (i.e. the Listing Date).
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the period from the Listing Date up to 31
December 2013.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

ETEHE (W)

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by KPMG who
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Company maintained
adequate public float since the Listing Date.

On behalf of the Board
Tsui Cham To
Chairman

20 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

N

To the shareholders of CT Environmental Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CT
Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 53 to
167, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

5 3 4% BB 3R (48)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FeRax

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T—=F+-A=+—HBLEFEUGBETITR)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-4F
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
B &E F#& T FET
Turnover = £ 2(a) 383,806
Cost of sales iHE A (131,411)
Gross profit EF 252,395
Other revenue H s 3 410
General and administrative expenses —RITEAX (22,233)
Other operating expenses Hih & &5 & 4 (3,264)
Profit from operations R A 227,308
Finance costs LRI 5(a) (36,984)
Share of profit of an associate DIE—REEE QA
HO 55 7 16 23,166
Profit before taxation B %% A 2 R 5 213,490
Income tax FriS 6 (36,140)
Profit for the year F AR 177,350
Attributable to: T & EEAN
— Equity shareholders of the Company — Zx A & #E 25 I8 52 9 177,229
— Non-controlling interests —EERER 121
Profit for the year FREF 177,350
Earnings per share (HKD) BRER (BT 10
Basic and diluted EAR R 0.17

The notes on pages 61 to 167 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the

year are set out in note 25(d).

FOIE1G7THAEN T AZETHHRERNH—
Eo o EIREE FADNRERRE Z KB E
F A FFE 1S =R B 5E25(d) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FEREREtMEEKEER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE-_T—=F+-A=+—HLEFEUBTIR)

2013 2012
—B—=5F —E——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#& T TET
Profit for the year FREF 177,350
Other comprehensive income for the year F R HE tt 2 H W=
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to  EZ Al gk D 8 E B A
profit or loss: HH:
Exchange differences on translation of BEIWIEFERABTIERN
financial statements of entities not using BEEME BRI ERE
Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD”) as functional EEMER=ZR
currency, net of nil tax MEBRZEFH 617
Total comprehensive income forthe year £ R 2 HEH =2 58 177,967
Total comprehensive income UT&FESLSERE
attributable to: e
Equity shareholders of the Company NN - g g 177,832
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2 135
Total comprehensive income fortheyear FREZ2H W= E 177,967

The notes on pages 61 to 167 form part of these financial

statements.

B9
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

FEMBRAR

As at 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZZE—=F+ZA=+—HBUABTIK)
2013 2012
—_E—-= —E——4F
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
BT 5 FET FETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENEE 11 265,408
Lease prepayments HEFEN B 12 30,109
Intangible assets EREE 13 8,832
Goodwiill P 14 —
Interests in an associate R—KEEDNA
FE 2 16 159,067
Gross amounts due from customers FEWRERFE4IRE
for contract work FNIA4B TR 17 244,085
Other receivables H b g Ug 3R 1E 19 133,542
Deferred tax assets EERRIBEE 23(b) 3,918
844,961
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 18 627
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H it e W 518 19 263,934
Gross amounts due from customers FEWRFE4IE
for contract work B B R 17 21,445
Deposits with a bank with original FEEEBEBB=MEA
maturity date over three months B ER1T 17 3K —
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 20 10,463
296,469
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables Z 5 K& H M e~ FKRIB 21 101,216
Bank loans RITE R 22 82,039
Current taxation B HA 7% 18 23(a) 12,712
195,967
Net current assets RBEEEE 100,502
Total assets less current liabilites #AEERARIBAR 945,463
The notes on pages 61 to 167 form part of these financial %61 ZE 167 BFTH N T AZ ST EHET A —

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

ReMEGIKAE(R)

As at 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZE—=F+=A=+—BWBTITR)

2013 2012
—B—=5F —E——4F
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
Bt 5 FERT FAET
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Bank loans RITER 22 517,360
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 23(b) 21,609
Deferred income i E A 24 14,592
553,561
Net assets EEZEE 391,902
Equity =
Share capital % 72 25 100
Reserves B 390,238
Total equity attributable to equity APTEERE
shareholders of the Company FEhESARE 390,338
Non-controlling interests FE 125 AR 2 26 1,564
Total equity T HB R 391,902
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R _-_ZE—NWHF=ZA -+ HEESSH AR
on 20 March 2014. BT -
Mr. Tsui Cham To HmEFRXE
Chairman and Executive Director FERHNITEF
Mr. Lu Yili EBMIEE
Executive Director and Managing Director HITEFHREFHLIE

The notes on pages 61 to 167 form part of these financial 61 =167 B &M AZZHBHREL —
statements. e
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Rt 350k 5 &=

As at 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

RZEBE—=F+_A=+—HUABTIR)
2013 2012
—E—-= —E——4F
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
BT 5 FET FETT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NGRS, 15 197,627
Total non-current assets ERBEEHTE 197,627
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H it e W 518 19 206
Cash and cash equivalent e RREFEY 20 44
Total current assets MEBEEHALE 340
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables E 5 K H eS8 21 7,818
Total current liabilities REBEEALE 7,818
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE
(BB FE (7,478)
Net assets EEFE 190,149
Equity =
Share capital % 7% 25(a) 100
Reserves A 25(b) 190,049
Total equity DA 190,149
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors R -ZE—MNFE=ZF-+H KEFSHEN

on 20 March 2014.

Mr. Tsui Cham To
Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Lu Yili

Executive Director and Managing Director

The notes on pages 61 to 167 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FEHREDR

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHE-_T—=F+-_A=+—HLEFEUGBTIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

FATRERREEUTEE
Non-
Share Share Capital  Statutory Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
EERS FER
BEx  ROEE EXEE AEE ELRAFE REEA st EE AR
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD'000 HKD’000 HKD'000  HKD'000 HKD’'000
FET TET FET FET TET THET TFER TET TAER
(note 25(a))  (note 25(b))  (note 25(b))  (note 25(b))  (note 25(b))
(fisE25(2)) (HIzE25(0)) (BizE25()) (B &E25(0) (B E25(0))
At 1 January 2012 R-_T——F
—HA—H 100 — (90) 46,543 28,937 139,068 214,558 9,435 223,993
Changes in equity —E-CEE
for 2012 WEZE2E
Profit for the year FEREFI - - = = — 177,229 177,229 121 177,350
Other comprehensive H fth 2 Yz
income — — — — 603 — 603 14 617
Total comprehensive 2ENEREE
income — — — — 603 177,229 177,832 135 177,967
Acquisition of U B I 4 A A
non-controliing (Bt 5£26)
interests (note 26) — — — — — (2,052) (2,052) (8,375)  (10,427)
Contributions from FERERTE
non-controlling
interests = = = = = = = 369 369
Transfer to EERTE AR
statutory reserve NEE = = = 2,175 = (2,175) = = =
At 31 December 2012~ R-_T——4F
and 1 January 2013 +-—A=t+—8
RZZE—=%
—HA—H 100 — (90) 48,718 29,540 312,070 390,338 1,564 391,902
Changes in equity R-B-—=FE
for 2013 WEZEZH
Profit for the year F R 7l — - — - — 224422 224,422 370 224,792
Other comprehensive H fth 2 i
income — — — — 13,112 — 13,112 867 13,979
Total comprehensive 2EKERE
income — — — — 13,112 224,422 237,534 1,237 238,771
Shares issued by share @3B IR 1D & & 1TH)
offer (note 25(a)(i)) R (Pt 55 25(a) i) 36,208 461,425 = = = — 497,633 — 497,633
Capitalisation issue BRI BT
(note 25(a)(iv)) (Bff 3£ 25(a)(v) 101,900 (101,900) = = = = = = =
Transfer to statutory BEREEATHE
reserve = = = 22,026 —  (22,026) = = =
At 31 December 2013 R -Z—=4
+-HA=+—H 138,208 359,525 (90) 70,744 42,652 514,466 1,125,505 2,801 1,128,306

The notes on pages 61 to 167 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GeLeRE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_T—=F+-A=+—HBLEFEUGBETITR)

2013 2012
—E—-=F —F——F
Note HKD’000 HKD'000
B 7 FET FAET
Operating activities KEEE
Cash generated from operations SRS 20(b) 307,196
Income tax paid B ER (28,586)
Net cash generated from RETHMBES
operating activities FE 278,610
Investing activities REEE
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary, Y B i B A 7 3K
net of cash acquired Mk ER S 15 —
Payment for the purchase of HEBENAKEE
lease prepayment and property, M - B R B
plant and equipment E:N (249,486)
Placement of deposits with a bank FREIHA H @
with original maturity date over =@ A MRITIFK
three months -
Investment deposits settled BEBRERS 16 47,757
Investment in an associate R — A& AR R
rE 16 (78,598)
Net cash used in investing activities & & AE S
E 5 (280,327)
Financing activities b & 5 B
Proceeds from bank loans IRITE KSR 220,875
Gross proceeds from initial ENNGE
public offering FriS sRIB 258 25(a)(ii) -
Payment of listing related expenses XNETER -
Repayment from/(advance to) wyE/(ER)E=H
related parties ER (111,175)
Finance income received 24 E A 148
Interest paid 2R FLE (37,076)
Repayment of bank loans ERERTER (106,813)
Payments for acquisition of g B JF 78 IS B 25 5T 2R
non-controlling interests (6,110)
Contributions from FEERERTE
non-controlling interests 369
Net cash generated from/(used in) B&EFE S~
financing activities (FrR)EEFHE (39,782)

The notes on pages 61 to 167 form part of these financial ~ 61 =167 BB M iE B FH B WA —
statements. =115 M
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
meEHeREX(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BHEZZT—=F+ZA=+—B1LFEWETITR)

2013 2012
—B—=5F —E——F
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
Bt 5 F#& T AT
Net increase/(decrease) in ReRBREEEY
cash and cash equivalents #®inCRd) B8 (41,499)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—HBHWEEK
1 January HeZEEY 51,967
Effect of foreign exchange rate GNP [ R B ) 5 &
changes (%)
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t=—HA=+—88
31 December ReRBREEEY 10,463

The notes on pages 61 to 167 form part of these financial FE1E167TEMEHM T RZEM B RKH —
statements. o o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt %5 88 =& P &E

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (HKASs) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period. Note
1(c) provides information on the new and revised
HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

ﬂﬁ

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EXRESTHEE @
(Continued)

MBRREREE

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b)

statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) and the Group’s interest in an associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

()

statements (Continued)

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 32.

New and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting
period

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Of these, the following new and revised HKFRSs
are relevant to and have been adopted in the
Group’s financial statements:

° Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of items

of other comprehensive income

° HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

° HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interest in other
entities
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) New and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting

period (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. Impacts of the adoption of the
new or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of

items of other comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present
separately the items of other comprehensive
income that would be reclassified to profit or loss
in the future if certain conditions are met from
those that would never be reclassified to profit or
loss. The presentation of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in these
financial statements has been modified
accordingly. In addition, the Group has chosen to
use the new titles “statement of profit or loss” and
“statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income” as introduced by the

amendments in these financial statements.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial
statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation —
Special purpose entities. It introduces a single
control model to determine whether an investee
should be consolidated, by focusing on whether
the entity has power over the investee, exposure or
rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and the ability to use its power to

affect the amount of those returns.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

New and revised HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting
period (Continued)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial
statements (Continued)

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the
Group has adopted its accounting policy with
respect to determining whether it has control over
an investee.

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard
all the disclosure requirements relevant to an
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required by HKFRS 12 are
generally more extensive than those previously
required by the respective standards. To the extent
that the requirements are applicable to the Group,
the Group has provided those disclosures in notes
15 and 16.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EBEARSFBEEX@®E
(Continued)

(d) BffEE 2B K IF4% IR M A ()

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and
cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business
combination, the Group measures any non-
controlling interests at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position depending on the nature of the
liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(0)).

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

(e) Associates (Continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recorded at cost,
adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of
the acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s
identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group’s share of the investee’s net assets and any
impairment loss relating to the investment (see
notes 1() and (0)). Any acquisition-date excess
over cost, the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other
comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate, the Group’s interest is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(e) Associates (Continued)

(f)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the investee, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former investee at the date when significant
influence is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset.

Translation of functional currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. The results of
foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EBEARSFHEE@E
(Continued)

(g) Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises trade and other
receivables on the date that they are originated. Al
other financial assets are recognised initially on the
trade date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash in a transaction in which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in
such transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group
has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets
into the following categories: gross amounts due
from customers for contract work, trade and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents.

(i)

Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work

The Group recognises a financial asset
arising from a service concession
arrangement when it has an unconditional
contractual right to receive cash or another
financial asset from or at the direction of the
grantor for the construction services
provided. Such financial assets are measured
at fair value on initial recognition and
classified as gross amounts due from
customers for contract work. Subsequent to
initial  recognition, the financial assets are
measured at amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(0)), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) Non-derivative financial assets (Continued)

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

(h) Non-derivative financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially on the
trade date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when
its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial
liabilities into the other financial liabilities category.
Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at
fair value less any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise interests-bearing
borrowings and trade and other payables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain
on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 1(0)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 3R R P & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBTLIR - R BERAERIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 1(0)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property,
plant and equipment includes the cost of materials,
direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of
the costs of dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (see note 1(t)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight-
line method or diminishing-balance method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings and other infrastructure held for
own use which are situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 20 years
after the date of completion.

—  Machinery 10 - 15 years

—  Office equipment and others 5 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0)

(k)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 1(0)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible assets with finite useful lives
are amortised from the date they are available for
use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

—  Wastewater treatment plants 25 years
operation rights
—  Sludge and solid waste 20 years

treatment operation rights

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

(m)

(n)

Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use
rights paid to the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC”)’s government authorities. Land use rights
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (note 1(0)). Amortisation is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the respective period of the rights which are
35 years to 50 years.

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of
an asset or a group of assets under a service
concession arrangement. When the outcome of a
construction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense by
reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it
is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. When the
outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

When inventories are consumed, the carrying value
of those inventories is recognised as an expense in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investment in an associate,
trade and other receivables and gross
amounts due from customers for contract
work.

Investment in an associate, other current and
non-current receivables and gross amounts
due from customers for contract work that
are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o) Impairment of assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries and an
associate (including those recognised
using the equity method (see note 1(g)),
the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment with its carrying amount
in accordance with note 1(0)(i). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with
note 1(o)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables,
gross amounts due from customers for
contract work and other financial assets
carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 2 BUE ()
(Continued)

(0) Impairment of assets (Continued) (o) EERE @)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off
against the corresponding assets
directly, except for impairment losses
recognised in respect of trade debtors
included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In
this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

fief 7 L 12 H D ORK M &5 4
TREAMBL  MEBR
B HERRR A B R 1R
ENEHEH GER
BEEBREREOEE - R/
BEEEANEETEER
EENRAEBBERE
AEFERBEREIM
BB B 1R T B B E HY
2R o

MEBBREHEEET
BEEAE EEHES

B 5 N H At & W SR IA
B e U BR SRR A AT LA MK
Ol & 2 LA TR L - 3 3F
RFEM - RIS E R
KR (B & 1R T & 1t 4
EENEETREZ M-
FERBERT - RERERE
BEERBABEERLCE-

fidf AN 5% [ e 58 R M (B Y
BT E M RIRAR
AAAKRENESHEEE
& 1 FE YRR SRR R 8
mMERBERTHRARE
BRENEMNSESRK
B m e fis ST Al At A B
REVRIEAEHE R

Il B SRR B 4 AR
Bl - BBEBROEMES
K H & W 5t Al B &
MEH KRB R B R
R

ANNUAL REPORT # 3} 2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired:

—  property, plant and equipment;
— intangible assets;

— lease prepayments; and

— goodwill,

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for intangible assets that are not yet available
for use, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), or
value in use, (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. A reversal of an impairment
loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that
lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies applicable to that category
of asset. Where no such consideration is
received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)
The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 1(p)(ii) if and when (i) it
becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee, and (i) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i)

Service concession arrangement

Revenue relating to construction services
under a service concession arrangement is
recognised based on the stage of completion
of the work performed. When the outcome of
a construction contract can be estimated
reliably, contract revenue and expenses are
recognised in profit or loss in proportion to
the stage of completion of the contract. The
stage of completion is assessed by reference
to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract costs for
the contract. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised only
to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. An expected loss
on a contract is recognised immediately in
profit or loss. Operation or service turnover is
recognised in the period in which services are
provided by the Group. When the Group
provides more than one service in a service
concession arrangement, the consideration
received is allocated by reference to the
relative fair values of the services delivered
when the amounts are separately identifiable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Finance income
Finance income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

Revenue from supply of industrial water
Revenue from supply of industrial water is
recognised when industrial water is supplied
to customers. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes.

Revenue from wastewater treatment
plants operation services

Revenue from provision of wastewater
treatment plants operation services is
recognised when the service is rendered.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes.

Revenue from provision of heating
services

Revenue from provision of heating services is
recognised when the service is rendered.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes.

Revenue from provision of sludge and
solid waste treatment services

Revenue from provision of sludge and solid
waste treatment services is recognised when
the service is rendered. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(s) Government grants

(t)

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of
the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of
the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

(s)

(t)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to business
combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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(u)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

(u)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

— inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)

v)

Income tax (Continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same Group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B4 35 4 2% P o (48)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(ABTTINR - S B RERIN)

1 EREFBX@®

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

(vij the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

(@) Turnover

The Group is principally engaged in the
construction of wastewater treatment plants,
wastewater treatment plant operation services,
supply of industrial water, provision of heating
services and provision of sludge and solid waste
treatment services.

Turnover represents the revenue for construction
services, revenue from wastewater treatment plant
operation services and finance income under the
Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) arrangements,
revenue from supply of industrial water, revenue
from provision of wastewater treatment plants
operation services under the non-BOT
arrangements, revenue from provision of heating
services and provision of sludge and solid waste
treatment services. Further details regarding the
Group’s BOT arrangements are disclosed in note
17. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in turnover during the year is

(@)

AEBETERFSKEERERE
RBKEERBERERS - H
fETEMK . RZHEERIRS UK
B A5 e K (B 88 RE W) e 3E AR 75 o

LERBHEERRH WS 5KE
EHEERB R akEZzR — &
2 - BR(BOTHZHETRE
WA HHETEXBKKE  RIE
FEBOT %2 B 12 )5 7K Bz 32 5% e &
B R W A R R AR TS I
B 05 K [E 58 B 1) B2 32 Ak 75 MK
@me AEANEBEBOTR ¥ % BB
ME1T7TR - RFR - EXRERER
MEEERFIRESBAT

as follows:
2013 2012
—_ZE—= —E—_4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#E T AT
Provision of wastewater RH#I5/KIE B ZR R
project construction services 693
Provision of wastewater treatment BREBOTLZ HER it )5 7K
plants operation services under IR 1R 2 5 PR 7S
the BOT arrangements 23,532
Supply of industrial water HE T RK 51,689
Provision of wastewater treatment R IE IEBOT & HELE i
plants operation services under TE KR B R e B
the non-BOT arrangements AR 75 242,866
Finance income A U A 16,081
Provision of heating services R HERT 48,945
Provision of sludge and solid waste REISRA R EGEREY)
treatment services Bz 12 AR %5 -
383,806
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Turnover (Continued)

The Group has transactions with the PRC local
government authorities which in aggregate
exceeded 10% of the Group’s turnover. Turnover
from provision of wastewater project construction
services, provision of wastewater treatment plants
operation services, provision of sludge and solid
waste treatment services and finance income
derived from local government authorities in the
PRC for the year ended 31 December 2013
amounted to HKD66,316,000 (2012:
HKD40,306,000). Details of concentrations of
credit risk arising from these customers are set out
in note 27(a).

Further details regarding the Group’s principal
activities are disclosed in note 2(b) below.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by divisions,
which are organised by business lines. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has presented the following five
reportable segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

(a)

(b)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

EERBE@

$%@ﬁ¢ﬂmﬁﬁﬁ%%L
THRGEHBRAEERZ

EMI0% BE_ZT—=F+=
A=+—HLEFE RH#H5KE
BREZRS RBESKEERE
LERE - REITIRINAKRE ERE
MEERBNEEEARLRKE
PR R EENRE AR

66,816,000 (= T — = &F:
40306000/%-575) FEBEEPEXE
WEFREER BN
27(a) °

ERAASEIZEHNE —FF
BTN T XM EE2(0) °

2 B &
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WS BEHERIN)

2 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (Continued)

Supply of industrial water:
supplies industrial water.

this segment

Provision of wastewater treatment plants
operation services: this segment operates
wastewater treatment plants under the non-
BOT arrangement.

Wastewater project construction and
operation services: this segment constructs
and operates wastewater treatment plants in
connection with BOT arrangement to
generate turnover from construction and
operation services as well as the finance
income.

Provision of heating services: this segment
provides heating services.

Provision of sludge and solid waste treatment
services: this segment provides sludge and
solid waste treatment services.

Segment results

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources
between segments, the Group’s most senior
executive management monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation
or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

The measure used for reporting segment
profit is “adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted
profit before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation”. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for
items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as share of profit of an
associate, directors’ remuneration and other
head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is
provided with segment information
concerning revenue, finance income and
costs from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments,
depreciation and amortisation and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7 HWE @)
() Segment results (Continued) () DIFELEGE
Segment assets and liabilities are not SHEERAEBRYEEHM
regularly reported to the Group’s most senior AEEZEEETHAE R
=

5 A2 MEER
BEMNEHYERZERA
MEBRRAZSY -

executive management and therefore
information of reportable segment assets and
liabilities are not presented in these
consolidated financial statements.

Information regarding the Group’s reportable
segments as provided to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 is

BE_Z2—=ZFK=_ZF—=
F+-_A=+—"BLEE"
AEERSEITHASRE
BRAEEA 2D EANE
BAEEETE R E D
EBRIBELMEFFIBOT ¢

set out below.

Supply of industrial water

HEITERK
2013 2012
—E-—=5F —EF—=

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FAET

Revenue from external customers REINBEFE U = 51,689

Reportable segment revenue A 2 ¥ o 2B = 51,689

Adjusted EBITDA 5 #£ 12 EBITDA 37,157

Interest costs A B (24,9293)

Finance income BE WA 19
Depreciation and amortisation FAYE REH

for the year (2,890)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

R 35 & 3= B oE (38)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(LAAB LIRS B FBAERIN
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 2 B/ % (@)
Segment results (Continued) () PEEE @)
Provision of wastewater
treatment plants operation
services
RS KEE RS E RS
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
TERT THxT
Revenue from external customers REIINEE UK = 242,866
Reportable segment revenue A 23k o Uz 242,866
Adjusted EBITDA 3 #£ 12 EBITDA 190,266
Share of profit of an associate DA — KBt E QT
H 35 Fl 23,166
Interest costs FLE KA (2,311)
Finance income B & WA 94
Depreciation and amortisation FRITEREHE
for the year (12,090)

Wastewater project
construction and operation

services

BAREEEZREERSE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—-F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FTERT THT
Revenue from external customers R EINEEF B &= 40,306
Reportable segment revenue A] 2 ¥ o 2B W 40,306
Adjusted EBITDA i £ 1% EBITDA 16,764
Interest costs NP (9,750)
Finance income B & U A 20

Depreciation and amortisation FAITE K

for the year (552)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(AETIITR - S B TRAERI)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 2B EH (@)

() Segment results (Continued) iy DEBEEE)

Provision of heating services

1= fit fit 2 AR 7%
2013 2012
—E—= —_ZF—=
HKD’000 HKD’000
FE T FAT
Revenue from external customers KB IR PR = 48,945
Reportable segment revenue A 2 7R 2P Uk 2R 48,945
Adjusted EBITDA 3 F 1% EBITDA 2,926
Depreciation and amortisation F AT E K
for the year (1,500)
Provision of sludge and solid
waste treatment services
RESERERBED
& 2 iR 3%
2013 2012
—E—=£F —E——4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
TERT AT
Revenue from external customers KB INEBEF B U —
Reportable segment revenue A 2 3| o U -
Adjusted EBITDA 8% 1% EBITDA —
Interest costs FLE KA -
Finance income BE KA —
Depreciation and amortisation FAITE K

for the year
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(i)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7 WS @\
Segment results (Continued) iy DEELEE)
Total
#E
2013 2012
=F—= —E——4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
TER FAET
Revenue from external customers REINEE P R 383,806
Reportable segment revenue DEE € 383,806
Adjusted EBITDA &8 # 1% EBITDA 247,113
Share of profit of an associate DE—KBERT
#9358 %I 23,166
Interest costs F 2B A (36,984)
Finance income BE KA 133
Depreciation and amortisation FAFE REH
for the year (17,032)

)

Reconciliations of reportable segment

turnover and profits

(i) ATEHRoIHEFXEEE T
¥ B
¥ BR

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FER FHET

Turnover EER
Reportable segment turnover AI2WMoEPE T 383,806
Consolidated turnover MEEER 383,806
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ii)

(AETTIIR -

WS BEHERIN)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 7S @)
Reconciliations of reportable segment iy ATE2{oPEEEERETR
turnover and profits (Continued) ¥R ()
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CZF
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET F&T
Profit Y Al
Total adjusted EBITDA 1% EBITDA#E 58 247,113
Share of profit of an associate DI — R E R A
obingl 23,166
Interest costs F B K AR (36,984)
Finance income BE WA 133
Depreciation and amortisation E REHE (17,020
Unallocated head office and RAROMBPLAER
corporate expenses NG (2,918)
Consolidated profit before taxation 4= -4 & i B & F 213,490
Geographic information (i) 3th & & Y

(i)

Analysis of the Group’s turnover and results
by geographical market has not been
presented as substantially all of the Group’s
revenue and assets are generated and

located in the PRC.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

2013 2012

—E—-=F —EF——fF

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FAT

Government grants (note (i) B 1 48 B (BT 5 1)) —
Government compensation (note (ii)) B RS w8 (8 (B 5 (i) —
Finance income generated from banks RITEERE KA 133
Others Hip 277
410

Note:

(i) Government grants in the year ended 31 December
2013 mainly included HKD7,520,000 cash awards from
local governments in connection to the successful listing
of the Company’s shares on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 2013 and
HKD3,760,000 from Heyuan Finance Bureau for the
Group’s contribution in provision of sludge and solid

waste treatment services in Heyuan, the PRC.

(ii) The amount represented compensation approved by the
relevant government authorities in 2013 for temporarily
suspension of the BOT treatment facilities of Huaihua
Tianyuan Wastewater Treatment Company Limited
(“Huaihua Tianyuan”), the Group’s subsidiary, from July
to October 2012 as a result of the excessive pollutants in

the pre-treated wastewater supplied by an end user.

ft E

(i)

BE-_Z—=F+_A=+—HI*F
B ARARESHRFHEERAN
ANABHR-_E—=FERIINELH
ARGHERARER LT EFREE
B AT % 57,520,000 7T H) 3E £ 88
By AR A& B A B R R AR
Vel ElBEREE IR RIS AT E 2 B M
& AR T B BB T 8,760,000 7% TT 2
HEE o

ZeBEERR —AREAFHENSF
RIS KESREKERE  BRAE
ERBARIRERRSKEEEES
AR ([ RIR]) BBOTE B & i
BT —StAZt+AEEFER"
MR- —=FEBBERTEBIE
A EE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

2013 2012
—E—-=fF —EF——4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FAT
Loss on disposal of property, LEYE  HE
plant and equipment REBEENEE 2,603
Others H A 661
3,264
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BB AR R & (Gt A)BR TS IE -
(crediting):
(a) Finance costs (a) mLE R
2013 2012
—E—=5F =E==
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FAET
Interest expenses F) B A AN 38,720
Less: interest expenses capitalised into & : & Z<{k A B 3%
properties under development* MEBF SR X~ (1,736)
36,984
*  The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a * fEE AN E I F F £ 6.55% & AN
rate of 6.55% per annum (2012: 6.55%). E(ZF—=% :6.55%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(b) Staff costs (b) E TR
2013 2012
—E-=F —"T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
TER FET
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IEBERHEMET 16,124
Contributions to defined contribution plan 5 5 fit 3% &1 21 4 % 932
17,056

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries
participate in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the
local authorities whereby the PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions to the Schemes
based on certain percentages of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government
authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

Contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) are required under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
The Group and its employees in Hong Kong make
monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The contributions from
employees and employers are subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HKD20,000 for the
period from 1 January 2012 to 31 May 2012. With
effective from 1 June 2012, the maximum amount
of monthly relevant income for MPF mandatory
contributions was changed from HKD20,000 to
HKD25,000.

The Group has no other material obligations for
payments of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the contributions
described above.

REEH B AR SS TH A ROER -
B E L E 2 E G BT
A B Y SROE B RO IR AR A G 8
(T5H&1)) - Tt FEHERREA
BaERREFEMNETADLL
A &1 &1 75 B 5K - 3 75 BROAT R
AHERKEENEZHMERER
FRE-

BB QB E GO R
EMatIE B (RES])E
X AEELEFZEEES
ARAHMERAESTE KA TR
TR B B MBI A K5% [ o4 &
CEFEEHBRBIMEHERR - RZ2F
——4%—HA—HE-_ZE——FFH
A=+—HHMH BEREEHN
#t 3K LA & A 48 B3 I A 20,0007% 7T
REBR - BZFE—Z—FHA—H
R EeRAMERRNET AE
78 W A £ PR $320,0007%8 T 28 A
25,0007 7T °

R B RO AR E Y ERL
18 8 R IR B B Al AR (K 1% 48 F) &
EHMERNEE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AT - BB FRERIN
(c) Otheritems (c) HtEB
2013 2012
—E—=5F —E——-4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT FAT
Cost of construction service 32 2% AR 7% A AN 628
Cost of inventories* 7 8 A~ 35,396
Depreciation and amortisation WTE MY 17,032
Operating lease charges KEBEERT 514
Research and development expenses  fiff 2 5 X2 555
Auditors’ remuneration % SN B & 2,010
Net foreign exchange gain PE 5 W 2= ) F KB (163)

* FERARNEMHRETIEXBKRRE
MﬁmﬁﬁﬂﬂEQWWu&
RESEREEBEDNERERS

K5KIEE & ﬁﬂﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ’]
R KL o

Cost of inventories represented raw materials
consumed during the supply of industrial water,
provision of wastewater treatment plants operation
services, provision of sludge and solid waste
treatment services and wastewater project
operation services.

(@) HABRXRAMNMAEHRAXE:

(@ Income tax expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represents:

106

2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CF
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#& T FAT
Current tax — PRC income tax ENEATEIE — P T B H
Provision for PRC income tax HR B BT 1S AR B 25,043
Provision for PRC dividend R AR B TR R
withholding tax 6,253
Deferred tax IE 7 B 15
Origination and reversal of ERUEEHENEL
temporary differences JrEEE 4,844
Income tax expenses FTiS R 36,140

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR



(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

RERRERFTENMSHA<HE
G5t AR

2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FER FAT

Profit before taxation B 75 A 213,490
Notional tax on profit before taxation LRI EBEREER

calculated at the standard tax rates A AR 2B R gt

applicable at the jurisdictions B B A s A ET E 89

concerned (i) HEBIA() 54,014
Effect of non-deductible expenses AR E 3,735
Effect of non-taxable income FEFE R WA 2 & (2,896)
Effect of preferential tax treatments (i) 18 2 55 T8 13 15 M) &2 £ (i) (28,094)
Effect of tax losses not recognised AERHMEBENTZ 427
PRC dividend withholding tax (iii) R B % B TE 0 (i) 8,954
Income tax expenses FT1S B F X 36,140

(i)

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations
of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not subject to
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and
the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong
Profits Tax as the Group did not earn income
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
The payments of dividends by Hong Kong
companies are not subject to any Hong Kong
withholding tax.

The statutory income tax rate for the PRC
subsidiaries is 25%.

() REHSHSRABELH
E(RBRAEE]) WA
RAIRER  AEEEHR=
HERRBRELEESHAM
MIEEFTRHR -

HREBEE_Z—=FK_%
——F+-A=+—RH1tF
B 7R & B I & BB E T
A B EREBNEHAE
LB SEBRRAIMNEN
REBEAMMKEMRNESE
L -

FEREKEARKEEMRSH
R 525% o
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(ii) Some of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are

entitled to the following PRC preferential tax
treatments:

Prior to 1 January 2008, Guangzhou Kaizhou
Water Supply Company Limited (“Guangzhou
Kaizhou”) and Guangzhou Xintao Wastewater
Treatment Company Limited (“Guangzhou
Xintao”), were each entitled to enjoy Foreign
Enterprise Income Tax (“FEIT”) holiday of 2-year
exemption and 3-year 50% reduction (the “2+3
tax holiday”) as production orientated foreign
investment enterprises, starting from the first
profit-making year.

According to Guofa [2007] No. 39, not yet
started tax holidays (due to loss position) will
be deemed to start from 1 January 2008. As
such, Guangzhou Kaizhou and Guangzhou
Xintao commenced their 2+3 tax holidays in
2008 and are subject to income tax at 0%
from 2008 to 2009, 12.5% from 2010 to
2012 and 25% from 2013 onwards.

Guangzhou Xintao was approved as a High
and New Technology Enterprise in November
2012, which entitled it to the preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 2012 to 2014.
Under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC (the “CIT Law”), where the transitional
preferential enterprise income tax policies
and the preferential policies prescribed under
the CIT Law and its implementation rules
overlap, an enterprise may choose the more
favourable policy, but may not enjoy multiple
preferential policies. Guangzhou Xintao chose
to complete the grandfathered tax holiday of
12.5% for the overlapping year of 2012.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR

(ii)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

AEEBNETHENEQ
AIZEEATHFEERNRR
fFi8

—EZENE-A—R8H#H
ERINIERELEREM
M B RAKE R R E (TEMEL
M) R BN FEKE F R
PR &) (T 3 ) o B
BT E B & B FE R
FEEFRIBEEMENR
(MINERERER]) MEE
BHEMER HR=F%
50% Fir 15 Bt 71 R AL % ([2+3
MBEE]) -

< |

E

{]

1B % B 3% [2007] 395% + I kK
MR B (RRER)
ERENR_ZZENE—F—
HFEE- Bt BMELMN &R
BEMNFBR_ESETNEMEA
Ho3MIBEEE RZTZ
NEE_FEETNLF  —_F—
TFE_FT-—_FFRHE_F
—=—F DA IERE-
12.5% K 25% X 4R FT 1S 75 ©

EMFHER T — —F+—
REHERS B KD
RZE——FE_ZT—NF
ZE1%MEBRMEHRE-
REFBECEMGSHEE(L
EREHE]D MEEMSE
HMEREERMAEI ARG
BEHEEECEMESREBE R
BERKEHRAEELE Bl
AEERABMNAOKEK BT
AIZEZEBRERE - EM
EBEREEN_—_T——
FEREKI25%H XN T8
W R A H o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

6 HREBRBRANAEHR @

Guangzhou Haitao Environmental Protection
Technology Company Limited (“Guangzhou
Haitao”), Longmen Xilin Wastewater
Treatment Company Limited (“Longmen
Xilin”) and Huaihua Tianyuan, being entities
engaged in wastewater treatment, are each
entitled to a tax holiday of 3-year exemption
and 3-year 50% reduction on income derived
from such activities (the “3+3 tax holiday”)
starting from the year in which the project
first generates operating revenue. Guangzhou
Haitao and Huaihua Tianyuan are subject to
income tax at 0% from 2010 to 2012, 12.5%
from 2013 to 2015, and 25% from 2016
onwards; and Longmen Xilin is subject to
income tax at 0% from 2009 to 2011, 12.5%
from 2012 to 2014, and 25% from 2015
onwards.

Heyuan Solid Waste Centralised Disposal
Centre Company Limited (“Heyuan Solid”), a
newly acquired subsidiary in 2013 and being
an entity engaged in solid waste treatment,
was entitled to income tax exemption for
2018. Heyuan Solid has received confirmation
form from tax authority for the income tax
exemption for 2013.

BEMEBERRBEERA
A(TEMBERE] - EFIEA
MKEF{BR QA (B
FaMA]) RIEAERIRERE 5K
RIE - BEBEBEBEXELEE
WRFEEEEEA=_F&
FHRETEER HE=F
B#ZEEBATE R AES%
FT 15 B4 8% =08 % ([3+3%1 18
BE] - BMEBRELX
BR_E—FTFE_FT—=
F.ZE—=FEF_FT—F
FREZTE-—RNFEBAZ
i R0% - 12.5% M 25% % 4%
FIef: mMEMAEAMR T
TNFE-_T——F =%
——FE-_FT-NFRBEZ
T-—AFRDIETEO% -
12.5% [ 25% B 4N FT 1S 7% ©

AL R T [ R RE W) & h BRI R
SEBRRB(TRER]D A
—E-=FHUBRHBER
AlOREEEERE EX
—E-CZEMENRARRE-
A TR B B8 1 % 7% % B U B
—ECZFEHRARER

=,

=
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6

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(i) PRC dividend withholding tax

According to the CIT Law and its
implementation rules, dividends receivable by
non-PRC corporate residents from PRC
enterprises are subject to withholding income
tax at 10%, unless reduced by tax treaties or
arrangements, for profits earned since 1
January 2008. Pursuant to the Sino-Hong
Kong Double Tax Arrangement and the
related regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for a reduced
withholding tax rate of 5% on dividends from
a PRC enterprise if the Hong Kong tax
resident is the “beneficial owner” and holds
25% or more of the equity interest of the
PRC enterprise. As all of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries are directly or indirectly owned
by a Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary
which is the qualified Hong Kong tax resident,
a rate of 5% is applicable to the calculation of
the PRC dividend withholding tax.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

EEBRANMAER @

(i) PEREFENH

REGEMBREALREER
=B FFRBEEEERAF
BieXEUnBREARE =
ZEENEFE—- A BHERI
B 55 A B 49109 &Y T8 40 P 15
B BIR 1% TE 3k % BE 1E A
BAIER SN o RIBE A EFE
el MR 2 EE M L
PORMERER W—2AE
REEHRBEERARIERE
BAILF AT B HE25%K
A Er B I BB TR
FERAREKEFEEEDN
I B R R 5%H) T X -
RASBERA+TENE ARG
5 — E R & B 5 M A 3L #9
BRARI(ERAERBEM
HER)ERAHEAES &
AAEREREBIHRIEEA

BV R 555% o



7

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 8 = B aE (3R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

7

Details of Directors’ remuneration of the Group are

disclosed as follows:

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

EEME

AEEEEMENFRRELT

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z—-=f1+=-A=+—HLEE

Executive HITES
directors
Mr. Tsui Cham To BmEBEE
Mr. Xu Shubiao RBIEEE
Mr. Xu Juwen BRIEXEE
Mr. Xu Zitao BRFEEE
Mr. Lu Yili BB E
Sub-total /NF
Independent BIYFHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Xu Zhencheng FFIRAK 5 A&
Mr. Liu Yung Chau BTk
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham 7R g}, 5 4

Sub-total

Directors’
fees

ExuHE
HKD’000

FTHER

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

e R
RBEYEF
HKD’000
FHET

There were no amounts paid during the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: nil) to the directors as
inducement to join or upon joining the Company or
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Contribution

to defined
contribution
retirement Discretionary

plans bonuses Total

REMTE
EE N BB AL st
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET FET

REE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—A8H1t
FE - BERESINEAREER
5| E Al Ak 0 AR A | kA K E &
CRENEAEBERBE(ZE—=
FF)e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

Year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_Z——Ff+-A=+—BILFE

Contribution
Salaries, to defined
allowances contribution
Directors’  and benefits retirement Discretionary
fees in kind plans bonuses Total
Fre Rl REHRR
BEEZme REWEN KRErEIHZK BB TEAL #Et
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Executive HITES
directors
Mr. Tsui Cham To BwEBELE — 399 12 6 417
Mr. Xu Shubiao REIREE - 145 16 11 172
Mr. Xu Juwen BB K E — — — — —
Mr. Xu Zitao BRTELE - 76 8 6 90
Mr. Lu Yili EENEE — — — — —
Sub-total NF — 620 36 23 679
Independent BIYFHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Xu Zhencheng SRR A % & — - — — -
Mr. Liu Yung Chau BERmitE — — — — —
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham  #K 5% & 5 4 — - — — -
Sub-total NE - — - - —
Total 425 - 620 36 23 679
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Of the five individuals with highest emoluments, one (2012:
two) is the director whose emolument is disclosed in
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of
the other four (2012: three) individuals are as follows:

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

hESSFMALHNER-—R(ZF
——F MBINB/ARAES EFH
MR ENME7 - Ep R (ZF— =
F:ZB)ATHOMESABENT

2013 2012

—g-—-= —T——F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FHETT

Salaries and other benefits e RHEAMET 1,558
Contribution to defined contribution plan 5 57& 5% R (R EF 2 3% 34
Total st 1,592

The emoluments of these remaining individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

RTERSFMALTOME LA T &
D

2013 2012

—E—= —E——4F

Number of Number of

HKD BT individuals individuals
A A

Nil-1,000,000 = 1,000,000 3

The consolidated profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of
HKD1,648,000 (2012: loss of HKD402,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 25(d).

KRRl EmBRRELEGEERZNBE
ERARAIMBERREENEIE
1,648,000 (= T — = F: F &
402,000 7)) °

ENEEMEAARERKEREFS
B A BT FE25(d) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is
based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HKD224,422,000
(2012: HKD177,229,000) and the weighted
average number of 1,115,886,000 ordinary shares
(2012: 1,020,000,000 shares after adjusting for the
capitalisation issue in 2013) in issue during the

(@)

BREXRETF

EREXRINDAELZEZDNR
BERNARRDRRKREEMNLSF
224,422,000 (=T — Z & :
177,229,000 70) A R B & 1TE B
A% Hn 4 F 19 £1,115,886,000 % (=
T — — 4 :1,020,000,000 f% (£
BT ——FEBRMLBIT)FR

il
O]

year, calculated as follows: B HEFREWT :
2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF—_F
’000 000
TR T i
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—H—HBE %17
B 1,000
Effect of issuance of shares by BARNDEESRTERG
share offer (note 25(a)iii)) 9 =2 2 (B 53 25(a)ii)) —
Effect of capitalisation issue ERLBITHRE
(note 25(a)(iv)) (B 3£ 25(a)(iv) 1,019,000
Weighted average number of R+-—A=+—H8H
ordinary shares at 31 December T3 A% 0 RE 15 8 1,020,000

(b) Diluted earnings per share

(b) BEREFEF

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012, there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares issued.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETIIR -

W= B EAE R

Buildings Office
and other equipment Construction
infrastructure Machinery and others in progress Total
BFREM WARE
HER HR R EHE A EEIR @t
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FBT FET FET FET FBT
Cost: R
At 1 January 2012 R-_E——F
—H—H 140,879 133,571 3,430 10,405 288,285
Additions NE 19,382 958 737 40,158 61,235
Transfer from BEREITRE
construction in Lty
progress 47 8,561 — (8,608) —
Disposal farh = = (4,943) — — (4,943)
Exchange adjustments [E 5 8% 45 6) 2 105 146
At 31 December 2012 R-_ZE——F
+ )EJ == 160,353 138,141 4,169 42,060 344,723
Additions through BB W BE T B ’& A
acquisition of EITRNE
a subsidiary (note 15(0)) (Kt 3= 15(0)) 15,504 20,141 5,134 710 41,489
Additions NE = 852 1,091 218,978 220,921
Transfer from BEZIEHEDN
construction in progress 91,178 17,420 113 (108,711) =
Exchange adjustments PE 5 38 % 6,364 4,593 147 2,944 14,048
At 31 December 2013 R-ZTE—=4F
+=-—A=+—H 273,399 181,147 10,654 155,981 621,181
Accumulated E=S i
depreciation:
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE—=
—B—H (26,053) 37,772) (1,418) = (65,243)
Charge for the year FAME (7,128) (8,713) (533) - (16,374)
Written-off on disposals o 5 B L SE — 2,340 — - 2,340
Exchange adjustments bE 5 (20) (16) 2 — (38)
At 31 December 2012 n= —F
‘f’ )EI +—H (83,201) (44,161) (1,953) — (79,315)
Additions through s M‘J‘ /N
acquisition of ETARE
a subsidiary (note 15(b)) (P 7E15(0)) (1,427) (2,677) (2,084) — (6,188)
Charge for the year F A (9,705) (10,897) (709) — (21,311)
Exchange adjustments BE 5, 3 & (1,183) (1,543) (70) — (2,796)
At 31 December 2013 RZTE—=4%
+=-—A=+—H 45,516) (59,278) (4,816) = (109,610)
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 December 2013 RZTE—=%F
+=—A=+—8H 227,883 121,869 5,838 155,981 511,571
At 31 December 2012 R-_T——4F
+=—A=+—H 127,152 93,980 2,216 42,060 265,408
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment MAFEEH R AESBAEFEIRTE
pledged to secure the Group’s bank loans (note 22) as RZ(MsF22) BB IEDE  BENEHE
at the end of the reporting period is set out below: WEREEHS AT :
2013 2012
—E—=5F =E==
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#E T AT
Carrying amount of pledged property, EEEYE  HE
plant and equipment HEHREE 1,070
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

Land use
rights
T b AR
HKD’000
FAT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 R-_E——F—AF—H 31,235
Exchange adjustments ME 5, B (%)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+Z-A=+—H 31,230
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary BRKBENBARETARE
(note 15(b)) (M 3E15()) 16,860
Exchange adjustments B 5, 37 & 978
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F+=-HA=+—H 49,068
Accumulated amortisation: HEt#es
At 1 January 2012 R-—_ZE——F—H—H (858)
Charge for the year F AR (262)
Exchange adjustments PE H 3 & (1)
At 31 December 2012 R-—ZE——F+=-HA=+—H (1,121)
Additions through acquisition of a subsidiary BRBKENBARETAE
(note 15(b)) (M 3E15(0)) (453)
Charge for the year FRHR (300)
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 38 B (39)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZZE—=f+=-RA=+—H (1,913)
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2013 R_B—=%f+"_A=+—H 47,155
At 31 December 2012 NR-—_E——F+-_HA=+—8H 30,109
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

Lease prepayments represent prepayments of land use
rights to the PRC authorities by the Group. The Group’s
leasehold lands are located in the PRC, on which its
infrastructures were built. The Group is granted the land
use rights for a period of 35 years to 50 years. At 31
December 2013 the remaining period of the land use
rights was 29 years to and 48 years (2012: 30 years to
49 years).

As at the end of the reporting period, the carrying
amount of lease prepayments pledged to secure the
Group’s bank loans (note 22) is set out below:

HEENREBEEASERTRERRE
L ERAERE - AEEHEN LT
WHURFR EEEEERE®E K
SEERASHGFES0FH L HFE A
-M—_TE—=%+-_A=+—8"' &£
Hh {5 A 2 A R B4 HA PR 220 F 2484 (=
T——F : 30FF49F) -

MBEHR AESAEERITER
(Misxe2) BN BERBNRBRE
BEHHNWT :

2013 2012
—ZE—= —EF——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#& T AT
Carrying amount of pledged BRHEEENKE
lease prepayments FREE 8,073

Amortisation of lease prepayments for land use rights is
included in the general and administrative expenses.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

Wastewater Sludge and
treatment solid waste
plants treatment
operation operation
rights rights Total
SRR EY
35 K B B R BRI
rewk Kk @et
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FAT FAT FAT
Cost: B
At 1 January 2012 N—_ZE——F—HF—H 9,991 = 9,991
Exchange adjustments PE 3, 3 & 1 — (1)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——F
+-A=+—8 9,990 — 9,990
Additions through acquisition of 3 38 Y 38 fff B A =
a subsidiary (note 15(b)) ANE (M 5E15(0)) — 41,538 41,538
Exchange adjustments ME W A 2 182 104 286
At 31 December 2013 NZE—=4F
+=-A=+—8H 10,172 41,642 51,814
Amortisation: ey
At 1 January 2012 RN—ZE——F—H—H (761) — (761)
Amortisation o (396) — (396)
Exchange adjustments PE X 3 (1 — ()
At 31 December 2012 N—E—=
+-—A=+—8H (1,158) — (1,158)
Amortisation s (403) (169) (572)
Exchange adjustments PE 5, 38 & (42) ©) (45)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=4F
+=—A=+—H (1,603) (172) (1,775)
Carrying amount: BR :
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=4F
A=+—H 8,569 41,470 50,039
At 31 December 2012 MN-ZE——F
+=-—HA=+—H 8,832 = 8,832
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

The wastewater treatment plants operation rights and
the sludge and solid waste treatment operation rights
were considered as definite life intangible assets. The
BOT arrangement stated that the operation period for
the wastewater treatment plants operation rights of
Huaihua Tianyuan is 25 years. The relevant operating
licences of the sludge and solid waste treatment
operation rights will be expired in 2015 and 2017,
respectively. It is expected by the directors that the
relevant operating licenses of the sludge and solid waste
treatment operation rights could be renewed upon expiry
and to generate net cash inflow to the Group for a
period of 20 years.

The recoverable amount of the wastewater treatment
plants operation rights and the sludge and solid waste
treatment operation rights operating rights were
estimated based on its cash flow forecast and using an
after-tax discount rate of 17.13% and 13.50%
respectively. The recoverable amount is estimated to be
higher than the carrying amount, and no impairment is
required.

Amortisation of intangible assets is included in the
general and administrative expenses.

5 7K R B R B R K 05 R LA K [E] BE R
MR EERERAEETEBERARE
FHMNEREE -BOTZH R ERILX
B s KEERBEEENEERA
BF - FRUREBEYVEELERE
MEREERRESIN T —AF
MZZE—tFHR -EFEH F5REMN
NEREYEELSEENERASEN
BARHREEE BAOALAEBEE
ERBBOFHRBAEESRAFE-

EKEEMKE RIS REEED
RIEKEETEREMN 2N E B
2 BIR IR IR € % A TE R & 5K A B Uk AL
IR E17.13% K% 13.50% m 14 51 ° 7] Yz =]
CHEESNRAE BHAETRE-

BREEBHEA A -REITHRAX -

The Group
A E
HKD’000
FHE T
Cost and carrying amount AR EREE

At 1 January 2013 R-—_ZE—=%—H—H =

Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary BB U B B B A )
(note 15(b)) NE (K1 EE15(0)) 12,194
At 31 December 2013 R—E—=F+=-_H=+—8H 12,194
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Goodwill acquired through acquisition of a subsidiary is
allocated to the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
identified as follows:

Sludge and solid waste treatment services

— Heyuan Solid 12,194

The Company determined the value-in-use by preparing
cash flow projection of the CGU derived from the most
recent financial forecast approved by the management
covering a four-year period and extrapolated to cover a
period of another sixteen years with an estimated
increase in selling prices and costs of 3% per annum
and no growth in sales volume. The rate used to
discount the forecast cash flows was 15.0%.

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

BRAUBNBEARERScABRAE
BreoRRReELABEN(REESE
BA)ETORMT

75 e K B B8 BE D Be B AR 75
— AR E 8 12,194
ARBEERUATELENNRSE
RERAEEEREE ReELE
URBEEEHRENKIOIBY KA
A BEEBARENFHRERE S
SNENERMHERIE - REE EEED
BENBAT EERRABFHR
3L RIER - ANFTRFBBEE R
EMNLER15.0% °

The Company
AT
2013 2012
—E—= —T—_F
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#& T FETT
Unlisted shares, at cost RETEAD - KK 197,627
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

(a) List of subsidiaries (@ WEBARRE
The following list contains only the particulars of TREBRTEFTEARAEEHZH
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, - EBESNABHNERRIFFEE -

assets or liabilities of the Group.

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERERER LA
Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and paid effective Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and business up capital interest Company subsidiary activities
= A 3L &% EBITR AKEEH HARE HAKNELR
ARER =E S8 BERELRFE EBEEER B BE TEEK
Guangzhou Xinzhou  Guangzhou, RMB10,000,000 100% = 100% Provision of facility
Environmental the PRC management
Protection Industrial service relating
Park Company to wastewater
Limited (i) processing
(“Guangzhou
Xinzhou”)
BMMFHMERARITE  HE - BN AR 100% — 100% 1R {HEA 5K
B A BR 2 A () 10,000,000 7T BR B 3% it B
(TR MM 1) AR %5
Guangzhou Kaizhou  Guangzhou, HKD20,000,000 100% — 100% Supply of
(i (i) the PRC industrial water
JE& PN S () i) R EM 20,000,0007% 7T 100% — 100% 1R T2 AX
Guangzhou Xintao Guangzhou, HKD127,000,000 100% = 100% Provision of
(i (i) the PRC wastewater
processing &
heating service
& M 58 5 ()i RE &M 127,000,000 7T 100% - 100% RIS 7KERIE &
HEPR S
Longmen Xilin (i) Huizhou, RMB5,000,000 100% = 100% Design,
the PRC construction,
operation and
maintenance of
wastewater
treatment plant
BE P AR () FE =M AR 100% — 100% =&t~ B3 -
5,000,000 7T BB N
75 K B TR R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(@) List of subsidiaries (Continued)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(@) KB ERE @

Proportion of ownership interest

BEEEESLH

Place of Particulars of
incorporation issued and paid

Group’s
effective Held by the Held by a Principal

Name of company and business up capital interest Company subsidiary activities
=E i A 3L R ERITR AEEW HARE HAKELR

ARER =E 308 BERELRFE HEBEER BE BE TEEK

Huaihua Huaihua, RMB10,000,000 100% — 100% Design,

Tianyuan (i) the PRC construction,
operation and
maintenance of
wastewater
treatment plant

B RIR() FECE(E AR 100% — 100% =&at -~ B3 -
10,000,000 7T BB N
757K BRI BR e
Guangzhou Haitao ()  Guangzhou, RMB80,000,000 99% = 99% Design,
the PRC construction,
operation and
maintenance of
wastewater
treatment plant
& M 78 (i) HRE - EIN AR 99% — 99% =& - BiE -
80,000,000 7T EE N
75 7K B 2B R
Heyuan Solid (i) Heyuan, RMB5,000,000 100% — 100% Provision of
the PRC sludge and
solid waste
treatment
service
TR [E] 88 (i) FE IR AR 100% — 100% 324558 & [E 62
5,000,000 7T % 1) 2 32 AR 75
Notes: Mo
()  These are private limited liability companies in the ) ZERAAAMRTIBEMNBEREMREA
PRC. The official names of these entities are in Al e ZERRAMERFEBAP X &

(i)

Chinese. The English translation of the names is
for reference only.

These are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the
PRC.

N & EHER -

) HARAFENNEBELE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBTINR - S BERERRIN)

(b) Acquisition of a subsidiary

On November 30, 2013, the Group obtained
control of Heyuan Solid by acquiring 100% of its
equity interests for a consideration of
RMB46,315,000, equivalent to HKD58,908,000.
The management considered this transaction as
an acquisition of a business. Heyuan Solid is a
company which mainly engages in providing
sludge and solid waste treatment services. The
following summaries the nature of consideration
transferred, and the recognised amounts of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition
date:

(b) WEHKE L F

R—_E—=%+—A=+H" &
EEBBAREAREKAL6,315,000
T (**7%8 908, ooo;%ﬁ)uﬁz,ﬁ\%ﬂiﬁ
B2 100% % #E BU 1S 128 | 4 - & 32
;{%z%ttlﬁx%ﬁﬁ%wéz% A
TRE R A — MRS & EE JE
Y BRI RS B R A e TXTE%LEA
WEBBEERENEES - B
WHEAERMAEABENHERS

e

L

Recognised
Carrying Fair value values on
amount  adjustments acquisition
IREE AFERAE WEERIE
Note HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
By 3E TAT TET TAET
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % « &= & X # 11 35,301 — 35,301
Lease prepayments HEBMRE 12 2,091 14,316 16,407
Intangible assets BYEE 13 27 41,511 41,538
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H fth e Uz 08 7,031 (3,404) 3,627
Cash and cash equivalents BHERESZEEY 9,941 — 9,941
Inventories FE 473 — 473
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENKIE (39,970) — (39,970
Bank loans RITE = (8,903) - (8,908)
Deferred tax liabilities FLETRIEEE 23(a) - (11,700) (11,700)
Net identifiable assets BE S35 5,991 40,723 46,714
Total consideration BRAE 58,908
Goodwill EES 14 12,194
Analysis of the net cash outflow &t 4 B& W =RNGIEE
in respect of the acquisition of fﬁ &ML FE
a subsidiary bali}
Total consideration “ 1&{ 58,908
Less: consideration payables M NZE—=F
as at 31 December 2013 +-R=1+—
ZERNRE (23,668)
Consideration paid BENRE 35,240
Less: cash acquired W FTER S (9,941)
Net cash outflow for WERB AR
acquisition of a subsidiary e Rt e 25,299

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

On 15 September 2011, the Group entered into an
agreement (“Agreement”) with two independent third
parties (the “Parties”) for investment in a waste water
processing project (the “Project”) in Guangzhou, the
PRC. Based on the Agreement, the Group and the
Parties agreed to form a project company (the “Project
Company”) to be owned by them as to 46% and 54%,
respectively and the Group was obligated to bid for the
Project on behalf of the Project Company. A deposit of
HKD122,166,000 was paid by the Group as at 31
December 2011 for the investment, in which
HKD56,762,000 and HKD65,404,000 represented the
Group’s shares and the Parties’ shares respectively. The
Group paid HKD65,404,000 investment deposit on
behalf of the Parties. HKD47,757,000 and nil were
settled during the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2013 respectively.

As part of the Agreement, Guangzhou Yinglong
Wastewater Treatment Company Limited (“Guangzhou
Yinglong”) with paid up capital of HKD1,230,000
(equivalent to RMB1,000,000) was established on 27
February 2012. The Project, with aggregate value of
HKD293,031,000 (equivalent to RMB238,411,000), was
transferred to Guangzhou Yinglong after the
establishment of Guangzhou Yinglong in accordance
with the Agreement.

For acquisition of 46% equity interests of Guangzhou
Yinglong, an amount of HKD78,598,000 was further
paid by the Group as part of the consideration during
the year ended 31 December 2012. Together with the
investment deposit of HKD56,762,000 paid by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2011, the
total consideration paid by the Group for acquisition of
Guangzhou Yinglong was HKD135,360,000 (equivalent
to RMB110,129,000).

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

RZE——FNLA+HH A&EEH
MEBIYE=F(EAFREEFEH
BME—E5KEREBE((ZEE D
v —ERE(ZBERD BRIEZHB
FZOASEEZFREKNL —BHAE
SB K& DB % B 46%K54%H) I8
BRRI([IBEERA]  BEAEBHEER
REBEBERARZEERE - A& H
ER-_E——F+_A=+—HBHXH
£ % 5122,166,00078 TTH X & B R %
& H 156,762,000 7T & 65,404,000
BLAONREAEB RS THNGHE-
AEBZREKSE A X 165,404,000 T
IR ERE - E47,757,0008 T M Z
BLTEAREBEE_ZE——FRK_F
—=Ff+-A=+—HIEFEHKE-

tERZEN — D BINABESK
BEEABRARTEMNBERDR=-_Z—
“THF A+ +tHRY BHELRAE
1,230,000 7% 7t (18 % 7 A K % 1,000,000
JT) ° 3% T8 B # {E {& /293,031,000 JT
(B ZE N AR #238,411,0007T ) « I &
MBEBEZBEKLE ZBEEE
EETEMERE-

BB EMNBRICLHRE REE
B2+ -A=+—BILEE-
N & B # — X 15/78,598,000/% T 1E
AEREMN—Bo BERAEEREZE
—E-——+-_A=+—BULEE
B X 8 1& & & £ 56,762,000/ T
AREBRKBENEBEE S HHAER
& £135,360,0008 T(HER AR
110,129,0007¢) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBTINR - S BERERRIN)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Guangzhou
Yinglong obtained a bank loan of HKD254,380,000
(equivalent to RMB200,000,000) from a bank in the
PRC. The bank loan is repayable on a monthly basis and
maturing on 27 March 2023. The loan carries a floating
interest rate of 6.55% (referenced to the lending rate
published by the People’s Bank of China) during the
year ended 31 December 2013. The bank loan was
jointly guaranteed by Guangzhou Kaizhou, Guangzhou
Xintao, Guangzhou Haitao and the other shareholders of
Guangzhou Yinglong (together “the Guarantors”) (note
29) and was secured by the charge rights of wastewater
processing in Guangzhou Yinglong (note 30(c)).

HE_T—=F+ZHA=+—HLHF
g FM%%W¢IM—%ﬁﬂWH
R1T 254380000,%7z(ﬁ#/\1§¢1€<

200,000 0007T) c IRITEREEBAEE
W= 77_@ A-+tBEH-
ERREBE-_T—=F+-_A=1+—
Etfﬁﬁﬂﬁ/;@ﬂ“ﬁ%%%(%,ﬂé{ﬁﬂ
BARBITIAMBOERFE) - RITE
A EMIMN - BN FE Fm/i/a&
BMABEANEMBRE(GBMREAD
e ER(ME20) W AR MNBERNS
7K B BE U B VR 1R (BT 52 30(c)) ©

2013 2012

—E-=fF —T——F

HKD’000 HKD’000

FHET FET

Share of net assets EiEE EFE 159,067

The particulars of the associate are set out below:

Ba RRMFFBEHIIAT

Proportion of ownership interest

BRI
Form of Place of Particulars  Group’s Held
business incorporation of issued and effective by the Held by a
Name of associate structure and operation paid up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal Activity
£ o B L ] BRATR AEEHN BEDH B Bt
BENRER #EREX R B BEREAFE ERER BE DEBE XTEEH
Guangzhou Yinglong (i) Limited Guangzhou, RMB 80,000,000 46% — 46% Provision of wastewater
liability the PRC processing service
company
BN B2 5 KRB BRAR B BN ARE 46% = 46% RESKEE RS
BR2AE() 80,000,000 7C

(i) The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The English
translation of the name is for reference only.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method
in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Summarised financial information of the associate,

adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and
reconciled to the carrying amounts in the consolidated

financial statements, are disclosed below:

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

RENRMBERMEE S BERDN
TAZHMARE TEEAERNES
MBHmREE REDOT

2013 2012
—E2-=F —E-CF
HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT FET
Gross amounts of the associate’s B NTRIEEAEE
Current assets MENE E 58,306
Current liabilities mEBBE (17,368)
Non-current assets FERDEE 304,860
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE —
Equity = 345,798
Turnover =% 127,701
Total comprehensive income THEKALE 50,361
Reconciliation to the Group’s interests B2 7Zx & B A B & A 7]
in the associate 2SR
Gross amounts of the net assets of g nNa B EFES
the associate 345,798
Group’s effective interest REEERR X 46%
Group’s shares of net assets of REBEEGEE QT
the associate ZREE 159,067
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

2013 2012
—_Eg2—= —_EF—=
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FET
Gross amounts due from customers JE U & P 3R IB A %A

for contract work BHTIE
— Non-current — JERNEA 244,085
— Current — B HA 21,445
265,530

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into service
concession arrangements with the grantors. Pursuant to
the service concession arrangements, the Group has to
design, construct and operate and manage wastewater
treatment plants in the PRC for a period of 25 to 30
years. The Group has the obligation to maintain the
wastewater treatment plants in good condition. The
grantors guarantee that the Group will receive minimum
annual payments in connection with the arrangements.
Upon expiry of the concession periods, the wastewater
treatment plants and the related facilities will be
transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain
renewal options. The standard rights of the grantors to
terminate the agreements include failure of the Group to
construct or operate the wastewater treatment plants
and in the event of a material breach of the terms of the
agreements. The standard rights of the Group to
terminate the agreements include failure of the grantors
to make payment under the agreements and in the event
of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in
constructing the wastewater treatment plants is
recognised as “Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work” in the financial statements.

“Gross amounts due from customers for contract work”
represent revenue from construction under BOT
arrangements and bear interest at rate of 6.25% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012:
6.25%). The amounts are not yet due for payment and
will be settled by revenue to be generated during the
operating periods of the BOT arrangements.

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

R 52 405 7K Be 1 3R e T £R A 4 R %
FEHHBREEVBERRTERR
[EUWEFEXHTIERIAMETE] -

BE_Z—=F+_-_A=+—HItHF
B [EREFANHIRERELE]IIE
REBOTLZHIE NEFZIBEE M - I
RE N EK6.25% (=T — ZF : 6.25%)
TR - BAREBRIBAMNR  WFR
BOTZ I 2N EELEN KR X
fif o

2013 2012

—E—-=F —EF——fF

HKD’000 HKD’000

FET FATT

Raw materials R 627

Inventories mainly comprise materials consumed during
the supply of industrial water, provision of wastewater
processing services, provision of sludge and solid waste
treatment services and wastewater project operation
services.

FETERERNMHEIERAK  RBH#
REKERIE AR 75 M AR5 B MBI B BE Y
BaIE AR A% A R R R BE /K IR B 28 IR 7%
Ry T A% A B A1 Y
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 3R & P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

The Group RE
2013 2012
—E—-=fF —EF——fF
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FAT
Current B &R
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 76,179
Prepayments and other receivables T A5 R B L th B W Rk 1B 34,286
Amounts due from related parties JE Wit 78 Bt 75 SR IE
(note 30(d)() (B £530(d)(i) 153,469
263,934
Non-current JE B HA
Prepayments for purchase of lease BEMHERENR
prepayments and equipment HBTEN RIE 133,542
Total BE 397,476
The Company ¥/
2013 2012
—_EgE—= —_EF—=
HKD’000 HKD’000
F&T FAT
Current B[ HA
Other receivables H b fE W SR IE 286
Amounts due from related parties JE Uk 8 B 5 BOR 10
Total 5T 296

All of the prepayments and other receivables (including FrB B R IE K& H fth fE R IE (B 1B FE
amounts due from related parties), apart from those W RAEE 5 5 18) TR A R — F R ke sk
classified as non-current portion, are expected to be BMRARX EI-BES B AIENH
recovered or recognised as expense within one year. B EB 5 ©

130 CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREEHBRA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis
of trade receivables, based on the invoice date (or the
date of revenue recognition, if earlier), is as follows:

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

BEREHR BFRUHBERER
HE (KM mERZE  UAREER/E)
EREE DT

2013 2012

—E—=F —E——-%F

HKD’000 HKD’000

F#& T TBT

Within 1 month — @ AR 49,432
1 to 3 months —Z&Z={@A 14,105
Over 3 months but within 1 year ZR=BAE—-—FA 12,642
76,179

Trade debtors are usually due within 30 days from the
date of biling. Further details on the Group’s credit
policy are set out in note 27(a).

Past due trade receivables are amounts due from the
People’s Government of Zengcheng City and Huaihua
City and a state-owned enterprise, regarding the
wastewater construction and operation service provided
by Guangzhou Haitao and Huaihua Tianyuan. Based on
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
these balances are usually settled within one year from
due date.

No impairment losses in respect of trade receivables
were recorded at each of the end of the reporting period
as the Group is satisfied with the recoverability of the
amounts.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

BoREFEABATERRBMES =
TERIB - FHEAEBEEEBRERN
#E—FF BN FE27()

BHIE 5B WGBS E NS R
fERBIRMF T KERREE R IE
WIB ™ KRBT ARBTAR—R
BELENREA REBELR  #A
RZERHRBEAYPAE-—FRE
H EEERRBANKXZERIEL
&

HRAKERSARRERTHE -
BREBRERRLERSERESE
WOk TR R R E R 1B -

I 4 780 SRk (B /Y FE W 5K TR T B 5T B
TEENCENRZEFPAR A&
By ERZEERTEEMERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBTINR - S BERERRIN)

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

@ RERRESEEBYEE:

The Group KE
2013 2012
—E—= = —_
HKD’000 HKD’000
F&T FAET
Cash on hand FHEIRE 664
Cash at bank RITHE 9,799
10,463
At 31 December 2013, cash and cash equivalents RZE—=F+=_HA=+—8"

placed with banks in the mainland China amounted
to HKD269,124,000 (2012: HKD8,587,000).
Remittance of funds out of mainland China is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of

FHRFAPBEABRITHRE KR
& EE Y2 5 5269,124,0007%8 7T
(ZZF — =% :8,587,000/8 7T ) °
HESEHPEBEINEETHH

4H

foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC AT 78 45 &Y 48 B8 &) 1N EE B A AR
government. EHE -
The Company P/ NYNES)
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
TER FHET
Cash at bank RITIR S 44
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation (b) BRFR AR R L& SEE) T 1S
to cash generated from operations: IH$ Y ER
2013 2012
—E—= —F——F
Note HKD’000 HKD’000
Bt FET FAET
Profit before taxation R %4 B v A 213,490
Adjustments for: KRB ATRIA
Depreciation e 16,374
Amortisation of ME AN RIE
lease prepayments s 262
Amortisation of B EE#E
intangible assets 396
Interest costs F) B KA 5(a) 36,984
Foreign exchange gain SN EE I 2= (2,926)
Finance income B & WA (148)
Share of profit of an associate DA — KBt &
A A) B9 5 F (23,166)
Net loss on disposal of HEME - W&
property, plant and K& EEE
equipment FRE 4 2,603
Changes in working capital: BEEANEE
(Increase)/decrease FEGEm,/
in inventories VR 131
(Increase)/decrease in 2 5 & H eIk
trade and other receivables FIE (),
NERAN 41,699
(Increase)/decrease in EWEF&H
gross amount due from TRERIBETE
customers for contract work (38 n),/ R > 3,423
(Decrease)/increase in B 5 & E th FE
trade and other payables FBCRD),/
eIy | 18,074
Cash generated from operations & & ¥ i 1538 & 307,196

ANNUAL REPORT # 3} 2013

133



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

The Group RE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T—=F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FH& T
Trade payables (note (ii)) 2 5 & 5k I8 (M =X (i) 37,452
Other payables and accruals Hib e RIERETE A 48,844

Amounts due to related parties J& 1~ BA Bt 75 3RIR

(note 30(d)(i) (B £ 30(d) i) 14,920
101,216

The Company AT
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——fF
HKD’000 HKD’000
FER F& T
Other payables H b & < SR I8 1
Amounts due to related parties J& < BE Bt 7 50R 7,817
Total et 7,818

) FMAEEZRNREA HMBEHE
MREREFERAERSER =
BARNBERIZEREER -

() Al of the trade payables, other payables and
accruals are expected to be settled within 12
months or are repayable on demand.

HEFXLNEEHN FI0RE
HATE -

(i)  The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges (ii)
from 30 days to 90 days.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Rt %5 88 = PH &E (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(ABTTINR - S B RERIN)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis HEREHR BEHEMNRNEZRESR
of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as HEIMEREE AT AT -
follows:
2013 2012
—EB-=F —E——-F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT FAT
Within 1 month —E AR 16,768
1 to 3 months —Z2={@AH 18,379
Over 3 months but within 1 year ZR=ERE—FR 2,305
Over 1 year —F A E —
37,452

As at 31 December 2013, the bank loans were RZZE—=F+_H=+—8H" E@E
repayable as follows: BIRITERAT :

2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E——-%F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT FHET
Within 1 year or on demand —FRRIEEKX 82,039
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEN 47,507
After 2 years but within 5 years WMEBERAFENRN 172,119
After 5 years hF1& 297,734
Sub-total INE 517,360
Total FEIS 599,399
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

22 BANK LOANS (Continued)

U)

(i)

All bank loans as at 31 December 2013 and 2012
were floating-rate loans denominated in RMB
borrowed from a bank in the PRC.

The bank loans carried floating interest rates of 6.55%
to 7.38% for the year ended 31 December 2013
(2012: 8.55% to 7.22%).

Bank loans amounted to HKD411,790,000 as at
31 December 2013 (2012: HKD453,632,000) were
secured by the charge rights of water supply in
Guangzhou Kaizhou, the charge rights of
wastewater processing in Guangzhou Xintao and
Guangzhou Haitao and the Group’s certain
puildings and lease prepayments. Details of the
secured assets are disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A

22 RITE R @)

U)

(i)

R_E—ZFR_T——F+=
A=+—HB FEBERTERY A
BRI —BERTERILUAR
BT ENZEEER -

BE-_ZT—=%+=-H=+—H
IEFE - RBITEREN F6.55%
B738% (=T — — F :655% %
7.22%) B BRI KT B o

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8"
© % /5411,790,0008 T (— T ——
& : 453,632,000/ 7T) MR 1T E K
LA BE N S B9 K Uk B R O
OB REMNE BN S KERKE
BARAEENE TEFREE
BRREEF BEBPEENT
BEBERME11 K120



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated (@
position

statement of financial
represents:

\A

RE BR3P AY BN EA B

HKD’000

FHET

At 1 January 2012 N—_ZE——F—H—H 10,005

Provision for PRC income tax (note 6(a)) o 3 AT 1S R 1 (M9 7E6(a)) 25,043
Provision for PRC dividend withholding tax B AR 2 T8 0 A B 4 (BT 5 6(a))

(note 6(a)) 6,253
PRC income tax paid ENFEFFH (22,333)
PRC dividend withholding tax paid ERPERKREENE (6,253)
Exchange adjustment b 3 3 & 3)
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE——FE+=-_HA=+—H 12,712
Provision for PRC income tax (note 6(a)) o B P 15 AR 4 (B9 RE6(a)) 38,933
Provision for PRC dividend withholding tax PR A B TR 0 B A (B sk 6(a))

(note 6(a)) 4,338
PRC income tax paid B BEER (33,789)
PRC dividend withholding tax paid ERPEREENH (4,338)
Exchange adjustment FE 5, 38 & 477
At 31 December 2013 NR—_E—=F+=-_A=+—H 18,333
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 ZEMBMRRAKRNFAEHR 50

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(b) The components of deferred tax (b) REEHHERRKRABERN
assets/(liabilities) recognised in the EERBEE (BE) AR
consolidated statement of financial HoRFRESEHNOT :
position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

PRC
dividend
Deferred tax arising withholding Revenue Intangible Government Unused tax
from: tax recognition assets grant loss Total
HERE KB A
FEEWEERE: A hHER BREE BRSHE BESS wet
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FHET THET THET TET FET FHET
RZZ—_%F
At 1 January 2012 —A—A (6,929) (8,176) (2,048) 3,649 671 (12,833)
Charged to R8N R
profit or loss (2,701) (1,743) — — (400) (4,844)
Exchange adjustment & }{, 5§ £ ® (4) = (1) (1) (14)
At 31 December NZE—Z%F
2012 +=A=+-~H (9.638) (9,923) (2,048) 3,648 270 (17,691)
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=
—H—H (9,638) (9,923) (2,048) 3,648 270 (17,691)
(Charged)/credited AR
to profit or loss (30B%) /3t A (4,611) (1,076) 51 - (208) (5,844)
Additions through BBWENE
acquisition of RAIZAE
a subsidiary (Bt 3£ 15(0))
(note15(b)) = = (11,700) = = (11,700)
Exchange
adjustment gk (370) (603) (63) 114 5 ©17)
At 31 December RZE—=F
2013 +-A=+—~H (14,619) (11,602) (13,760) 3,762 67 (36,152)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(o) The components of deferred tax
assets/(liabilities) recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the
years are as follows: (Continued)

23

nv D

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

EUBRRROAEHR @

(b) REZEHMBRRARABRN

FEEHRBEBEE (BFE)AK
BAIRFRESEUOT (@)

The deferred taxation is recognised on the REAVER A REREILER
consolidated statement of financial position as IHAA R ¢
follows:
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FE T FAET
Deferred tax liabilities recognised on the 45 & B # AR &R
consolidated statement of BRAELHEAE
financial position (21,609)
Deferred tax assets recognised on the R 4R & B S Ak KR
consolidated statement of REIELERIEEE
financial position 3,918
(17,691)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 1(u), the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
certain PRC subsidiaries of HKD5,488,000 as at
31 December 2013 (2012: HKD2,120,000), as it is
not probable that future taxable income against
which the losses can be utilised will be available.
As at 31 December 2013, tax losses for these PRC
subsidiaries amounting to HKD412,000,
HKD1,453,000 and HKD3,623,000 will expire, if
unused, by the end of 2016, 2017 and 2018,
respectively.

()

AERELEHREE

BEMFIWATE S BE &
SBYERETHREME A A
RZZE—=F+=-RA=+—H
/5,488,000 (=T — = &
2,120,000 7T) &) 2 5t T B B 1B
RELEHMEBEEE ARAKRER
AARENEENERTBARN

AT AR - R_FE—=F1+
ZA=+—H  ZEHTEWBEA
7)€ %8 A 412,0007% 7T * 1,453,000
7 7T }.3,623,000/8 T & i 18 &
T;ﬁ(fhfkibﬁﬁ)ﬂﬁ’" |RZF— X
F ZZ2—+tFEZZT-NFE
FIHER o
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24

25

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

As at 31 December 2013, taxable temporary
differences relating to the interests in an associate
amounted to HKD46,870,000 (2012:
HKD23,245,000). No deferred tax liabilities were
recognised as at 31 December 2013 as future
dividends from this associate to the Guangzhou
Xintao, the direct shareholder of Guangzhou
Yinglong, are exempted from PRC income tax and
the Group has no plan to dispose of the associate
in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income consists of a deferred government
grant. The grant from local government was conditional
and the conditions would be fulfilled upon the completion
of construction of certain fixed assets of Guangyuan
Xizhou Environmental Enterprises Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Group. The grant will be recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the fixed assets.

23 HREMBMRRRNFER &

ABRBELEBREAB

RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—8"
HR—RBERANERZBEAD
JiE 2R 7 B = 58 546,870,0007% 7T
— T — — 4 : 23,245,000/ 7T ) °
RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—H¥
BEHRATAEECREEG BA
ZHMERAINTEMNBEERE
BREEMNFTENRRBREERE
BMPBEREH BASEBERA
BREERITESELEZBE D
ajo

(d)

24 EIEUWR A

FEEWABERCHRTHE - KA
FERNOEEAEI&E - BRS Ky
BRANEE 2 KB A T ETEMNBIER
EEERAAETETEENESES

PRAZGERK > s ISR EEEER A
ERFHAREGEENBERRR
WA e

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 EXR - HERRE
(@) Share capital (@ B
() Authorised share capital of the i) ARDBEERRN
Company
Number of
shares HKD
B3 2 B BT
At 1 January 2012, 31 December WN_-_ZT—_F—H—H -
2012, 1 January 2013 and —E——%+—-H
31 December 2013 =+—H -—ZT—=4%
—A—BR-_E—=%
TF=E == 4,000,000,000 400,000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Issued share capital of the Company

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(@) MA@
(i) AATEBITHRA

Number of
shares HKD
iigvigg=] BT
At 1 January 2012, 31 December R_ZET——F—HA—H -
2012 and 1 January 2013 —_E——F+—-H
=+ HERZE—=F
—HA—H 1,000,000 100,000
Shares issued by share offer BBRMHEEEITHORD
(note 25(a)iii)) (B 3£ 25(a)ii)) 362,082,000 36,208,000
Capitalisation issue (note 25()(iv)) & At 2 17 (Fff 5E25(a)(v)) 1,019,000,000 101,900,000
1,382,082,000 138,208,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
the meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

Shares issued by share offer

The shares of the Company were listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
on 25 September 2013, with a total number
of 1,360,000,000 shares, among which
340,000,000 (25% of the total number of
shares of the Company) were issued to the
public. The gross proceeds received by the
Company from the global offering were
approximately HKD503,200,000.

On 17 October 2013, a total number of
22,082,000 ordinary shares were issued by
the Company at HKD1.48 per share upon the
exercise of over-allotment option. The
additional gross proceeds received by the
Company in connection to the over-allotment
issue were approximately HKD32,681,000.

TR A AB R WECT
EIRHKE WA D AR
FASLEEEER —ER
ZRE-ARANFBREEM
T BEAREERSMH

N

il

[

=

(iiy BEBRODEBEEHITHRS
ARARHBROHER=ZZT—=
FRLRA-T+TRBEBREBEEB
ERGHFMBR AR LW
A& # %1,360,000,000 f% A%
> H F1340,000,000 & [
ARRETEARRRKRMD R
HH25%) K QXAEBBE
KBEEMSRELBENA
503,200,000 7T °

RZZT—=%F+A++tA8"
ZN/NEIE=RCEGR RN g
% 17 & 22,082,000 % & &%
1488 T E @R - XA A
EABERERITHENE
SN FRIB 42 58 49 /532,681,000
BT °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

(@) Share capital (Continued)

(iv) Capitalisation issue
On 25 September 2013, 1,019,000,000
ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each were issued
at par value to the shareholders of the
Company by way of capitalisation of
HKD101,900,000 from the Company’s share
premium account.

(b) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s

(@) MR ()

(iv)

BR{LEIT
RZE—=ZFhLA=-+H
= ENG/NS B S S NN ) 4
3 3% {8 B = 101,900,000 %
THEERSBTEAN AR
ZEMERA QB RREZET
1,019,000,000 f% & A% 0.1 78 7T
A 3 A% o

(b) 7z A Ak AR 10 B & B

AEBHEEES SHEKID F A
RERzZERZEHOHERINES

consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated HREHER KRR ZERAK
statement of changes in equity. Details of the HOoFNRERCEEEOFE
changes in the Company’s individual components E ]l N
of equity between the beginning and the end of the
year are set out below:
Share Share Capital Accumulated
capital premium reserve losses Total
(&N 13 %18 BEARRE Rt BB Bt
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
THET FHT THET FHET FHT
RZT——F
At 1 January 2012 —B—H 100 (90) 197,627 (7,086) 190,551
Total comprehensive FAREZEBA
income for B
the year — — — (402) (402)
RZT—=F
At 31 December +=-R=+—H
2012 and ;rZE—=%F
1 January 2013 —B—H 100 (90) 197,627 (7,488) 190,149
Total comprehensive FRE2ERALTE
income for
the year — — — (1,648) (1,648)
Shares issued by BRI BEEET
share offer )i Enl
(note 25(a)iii) (B 5 25(a) i) 36,208 461,425 = = 497,633
Capitalisation issue BAR(LET
(note 25(a)(iv)) (B 5 25(a)(v)) 101,900 (101,900) = = =
At 31 December R-ZZE—=F
2013 +=-R=+—H 138,208 359,435 197,627 (9,136) 686,134

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Movements in components of equity
(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(i)

PRC statutory reserves

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries now comprising
the Group, appropriations to the general
reserve fund were made at a certain
percentage of profit after taxation determined
in accordance with the accounting rules and
regulations of the PRC. The percentage for
this appropriation was decided by the
directors of the respective subsidiaries. This
reserve fund can be utilised in setting off
accumulated losses or increasing capital of
the subsidiaries and is non-distributable other
than in liquidation.

Foreign currency translation reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations with functional currency other
than HKD. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 1(f).

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents
the difference between (a) the nominal value
of share capital of a subsidiary acquired; and (b)
the nominal value of the shares issued by the
Company in exchange under the
reorganisation of the Group on 31 May 2011.

The capital reserve of the Company
represents the excess of the consolidated net
assets represented by the shares acquired
over the nominal value of shares issued by
the Company in exchange under the
reorganisation.

25 EX - #ERRE @

(b) EEREKBHNES @

(i)

(i)

B A E f
RBEAREEBATE TS T E
ff AR R ERR AR E
fERARBHRENSFR
Rl BOE A5 HE TE R BR 1R 4t A
B RF TE L B 8 B — AR I 0
T EHEEOBBEBNER
AMEFRAE “EHEES
] P LA 58 #75 BY B8 & ) B R T
BEIENER ERBFE
ZHHMEMBERTTED
fic -

NS RE E A
SMNERBERBBRENETLL
SNThBE R B St BRI R B R
% MR E L B P A B R SME
ER o A TR
PrEm st R IE -

=N

R B E AN () Pk
BHBARKRAMEE: &
OARRARR =T ——FHA
St HREAEENEME
AR\MBTHBRM O EE
ZREERE -

NN LR
B eEERERS
ARABIREBEEEER 5%
TRDEEMED o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the aggregate amounts
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was
HKD547,926,000 (2012: HKD190,049,000), which
comprises of share premium, accumulated losses
and capital reserve of the Company.

Dividends

Subsequent to 31 December 2013, the directors
proposed a final dividend of HKDO.03 per ordinary
share, amounting to a total of HKD41,462,000.
The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a
liability as at 31 December 2013.

Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for the shareholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A

(c)

(d)

(€)

25 BX - ERkKRE (&

i 4t 7 K 15

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—8"
AR FARAERRENGE
5 4258 5547,926,000/8 T (—Z & —
— £ : 190,049,000/ L) © BIE A
NEIHROEE R BEUAK
N

=\

RZE—=%F+=ZA=+—H
B ESRRACTERETAR
003 TH RHI R E - B8 E
41,462,0008 ¢ - R EH KRB ZE
BEREHRHERBER=_ZT—=F
+-A=+—HIXERAEEE-

EXERE
AEBEREAMBEBRRRER
SERAEKEMNEN  AEHEE
SERRFBEREDN SR REFR
EEARGEB AR K E AR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

() EXAEE M@
ZIKEE%HM“ B FEG S

(e) Capital management (Continued)

The Group uses different measures including
adjusted net debt-to-equity ratios to monitor its REFREHMEREE R - FE
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings BN A M BRI RIT R EE
(including bank loans), as shown in the K (BIFERITER) KT HR 3%
consolidated statement of financial position plus % B IR & & RITERFTEE
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and de BERUEZEE T KA KFT

bank deposits. Total capital is calculated as total TN B 48 RE 2R OR oK BT R R B AR B T
equity, as shown in the consolidated statement of B -
financial position less unaccrued proposed
dividends.
The Group The Company
rE NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-—= —E--F ZEB-Z=% —T——-F
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FET AT F#& T AT
Bank loans RITER
(note 22) (P 5E22) 599,399 —
Total borrowings ~ #& & & 599,399 —
Add: piiE
Proposed BIREZERE
dividends (Bt 5 25(d))
(note 25(d)) - -
Less: e
Cash and cash Re kA€
equivalents ZEY
(note 22) (Mf7E22) 10,463 44
Deposit with TR IRTT
a bank with R0 F HA B
original maturity A= {E A
date over ZTFR
three months — -
Adjusted KRR ER
net debt 588,936 (44)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

(e) Capital management (continued)

(e) EXREIE (@)

The Group The Company
rEHE b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—_E—=F T -——F Z—EB-—=F —ZT-—_—F
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT FAT FER FAT
Total equity 48w 391,902 190,149
Less: A
Proposed dividends ## i 2% i% 2.

(note 25(d)) (Fft 5% 25(d)) — —
Adiusted equity 4T S EERE2S 391,902 190,149
Adjusted net KRB FES

debt-to-equity W b R

ratio 1.50 0.00

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

On 10 January 2012, the Group acquired the remaining
25% equity interests in Huaihua Tianyuan for
RMB8,500,000, equivalent to HKD10,427,000,
increasing its ownership from 75% to 100%. The
carrying amount of Huaihua Tianyuan’s net assets on
the date of the acquisition was HKD33,498,000. The
Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests
of HKD8,375,000 and a decrease in retained earnings of
HKD2,052,000.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR

ARmREEAMBRREESR
RRINEBIEINEE RERK -

RZE——F—A+H8  AEEMNUA
R # 8,500,000t ( 8 % 710,427,000
78 7T ) W BB B b KR F 8225% # &
1% % B R B75%1E i =100% ° R U
BEHH BLERXRFEENEEMES
83,498,000/ 7T ° A & B 7 Bl #E R FE 4%
P& # %5 R 48,375,000/ T MR B & F
B 42,052,000 7T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to these risks and the
financial risk management policies and practices used
by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(a) Credit risk

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Debts are usually due within 30
days from the date of billing.

Debtors of the Group represent receivables in
respect of revenue from supply of industrial water,
revenue from wastewater processing service,
revenue from wastewater treatment plants
operation services, revenue from heating services
and revenue from sludge and solid waste treatment
services which are settled on a monthly basis. In
addition, the Group has gross amounts due from
customers for contract work in respect of the BOT
arrangements.

As at 31 December 2013, trade and other
receivables and gross amounts due from
customers for contract work of the Group
amounted to HKD632,903,000 (2012:
HKD663,006,000), of which HKD22,621,000 (2012:
HKD11,111,000) was due from the largest
customer and HKD233,153,000 (2012:
HKD194,893,000) was due from the five largest
customers in aggregate of the Group. The
maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Since
the parties to BOT arrangements are local
government authorities in the PRC, the Group
considers the credit risk is low.

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

FE -RBEE  FRRINERR IR
AEBMNAEXRBBREPELE TX
FAAEEF@mENERNRAEE R
EEZERE AR EREERRK
KABH o

(a) EERB

EREREFERR IFER
RERERR BEHAFHFAREA
HAEEt30H WA -

AEBEMERERREABEKS
HETERAKES  RBESKE
B IR W s N5 K BRI R 2 B R
Bl HBRB W EKRITE R

[E] 62 % 1) Ba 12 AR 7% Wi 25 1O 8 U R
B AERETIRAERN -t
AEEEEEBOTLH A BHE
WEPAHNTIRERAEENLEM
FE W RIE o

RZE—=F+=ZH=+—8"
AEBEWE S K EthEKRKIE
LA&JELBZ%)EQ,Z@I%“”IE“
#632,903,000% (= & — =
% : 663,006,000 Jt ) H
22,621,000 7% fz(:;ff_i-
11,111,000 L) B EK & KNE P
FXIA > M233,153,000/8 T (=& —
_¢'1948930005§7_E)7%2S’$l
AARBEFPRRBE EFaEER
zﬁa%v?é.\ﬁﬂkﬂk/i%mxla &t
EEMKREME- A XBOTX B/
S A BB RTHEE - &
rEERBEERRBRBIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which the customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to
individual customers.

Except for the financial guarantee given by the
Group as set out in note 29, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of the
financial guarantee at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 29.

Further quantities disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from “Gross
amounts due from customers for contract work”
as well as “Trade and other receivables” are set
out in notes 17 and 19, respectively.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

Typically, the Group ensures that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash on demand and
adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirement
in the short and longer term. This excludes the
potential impact of extreme circumstances that
cannot reasonably be predicted.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RENE <R (@)

The following tables show the remaining TRINTAEERAR AN
contractual maturities at the date of statement of SeRBEREMBRAKXBEHN
financial positions of the Group’s and the FEANT A EOEESY
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which KRB REeRE(BRENABE LT
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows Ry (MAEZE)BEREHRAY
(including interest payments computed using ENEARRAE N F B IE) F AN E
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates BANGEMNROREH S
current at the end of the reporting period) and the 2584

earliest date the Group and the Company can be
required to pay:

The Group &

31 December 2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—E-=Z5+ZA=+-H
BHARBRRASRE
Within More than More than
1year 1yearbut 2years but
oron less than less than More than Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
BHBE-F  HEWMF
—FRH BHR BHR
BREX M F hF  HBRF #ct BREIE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
THET TR THERT THER THERT THET

Bank loans RITER
Trade and other B 5 K H At

payables FE 3 /1B
Total BEr
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 27 tEREEREMIANA
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL S E (&)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RENE L & B (&)
The Group (Continued) REE (&)

31 December 2012
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—ET-—_ft+ZA=t+—H
BRRERE SR

Within More than More than

1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
or on less than less than ~ More than Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

HE—F HBBAWF

—FRNY ERS ERS
mEK A 5 hE HBARF st RHEE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’'000  HKD'000 HKD’000  HKD’000
FTET FET TAET FET TET TET

Bank loans RITER 121,847 81,874 252,293 348,741 804,755 599,399
Trade and other B 5 Rk E fth

payables FEFIE 101,216 - - — 101216 101,216
Total a5 223,063 81,874 252,293 348,741 905971 700,615
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FENE € & B (&)
The Company /NI

31 December 2013
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—E2-=f+ZRA=+—-H
BRARBRASHKE
Within More than More than
1year 1yearbut 2years but
or on less than less than More than Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
BB-F  HBWF
—FRH BHR BHR
BREXR mF hf  HEBIEF #ct SREE
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
TERT THERT THERT THERT THERT TERT

Other payables £ b & {+ 7 18

31 December 2012
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—ET-—ft+ZA=t+—H

BHRBRB SR

Within - More than 1 More than

1 year year but 2 years but
or on less than less than ~ More than Carrying
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

BE—F BBMTF

—FAK BLR BLR
BEX P iF BBILF st EEE
HKD'000 ~ HKD'000  HKD'000 ~ HKD'000 HKD'000  HKD'000
TAT TET TAT TETL TET TERL

Other payables . #fi f& i 50 18 7,818 — — — 7,818 7,818
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank loans. Bank loans issued at variable rates
and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk and fair value interest risk,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, all of the
Group’s bank loans carried floating interest rates of
6.55% to 7.38% (2012: 6.55% to 7.22%).

As at 31 December 2013, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, profit
before tax for the year would have been
HKD5,522,000 (2012: HKD5,994,000) lower/
higher, respectively, mainly as a result of higher/
lower finance costs on bank loans.

Foreign currency risk

Individual companies within the Group have limited
foreign currency risk as most of the transactions
are denominated in the same currency as the
functional currency of the operations in which they
relate. However, as the principal subsidiaries
mainly carried out transactions in RMB, therefore
any appreciation or depreciation of HKD against
RMB will affect the Group’s financial position and
be reflected in the exchange reserve.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A
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Y H &)
(c) F =@ b

(d)

AEBENMNERER T ERBRT
B RF BN R K EE N K E
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HE-_ZT—=F+=-_RAR=+—H
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BT - i {8 3R = 18 o076 4
1001EE 2 - F & # R Bk F AT A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Fair value

(f)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 December 2013 and 2012.

Estimation of fair value

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

(i)

(ii)

Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work

Gross amounts due from customers for
contract work are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised
cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts. Fair value is calculated based
on the present value of future principal and
interest cash flows, discounted at the market
rate of interest at the end of the reporting
period.

27 TREABEEREMIANA

1E ()
(e) A¥E

(f)

2 BN S B K AN P BR ) AR & B
CRTANEEEREN T —
—FRZETE—ZF+ZHA=+—
HOAFELEEKTR -

AT

TX#t @ T AR FER
PIERANEZ T ERMBR -

(i)

(ii)

BREFENIENRER
L]
EREFPEHNTIRRIALRE
NERAFEER HRZA
R BB R XL E A
51 B -

g5 R H AR WA

B 5 REMERFIBEN LR
N ERER RRREHK
ABARERERE R - 2
FERBRAREAE RHNER
ERENRE RESTHR
MG H R RETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

() Estimation of fair value (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)
Where discounted cash flow techniques are
used, estimated future cash flows are based
on management’s best estimates and the
discount rate is a market related rate for a
similar instrument at the end of the reporting
period.

Bank loans

The fair value is estimated as the present
value of future cash flows, discounted at
current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments.

Property, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and
equipment recognised as a result of a
business combination is based on market
values. The market value of property is the
estimated amount for which a property could
be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm’s length transaction after proper
marketing wherein the parties had each
acted knowledgeably and willingly. The fair
value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures
and fittings is based on the market approach
and cost approaches using quoted market
prices for similar items when available and
replacement cost when appropriate.

Interest rate used for determining fair
value

The market interest rates adopted for
determining the fair value of bank loans are
ranging from 5.60% to 6.55% (2012: 6.50%
to 7.30%) as at 31 December 2013.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

28

() Estimation of fair value (Continued)

(vi)

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in
an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to
interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the
guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2013
not provided for in the financial statements were as

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

27 S REREEREBMIANA
S E (&)

(H DFEME@E

(vi) BAERER
ERTHRERERNAFE
EAZ2EERURBHOQF
X5 H B EE R (KA
RMEHBER MET =X
S2ERBEZMMGE - TERMN
ERAGEEREHRERNBR
TEREERNAE - EHE X
AETEREEROBRLT
1 & WER Y 4 5T A R AE L&
(M FE M AL A S
at) e

28 BEAREIE

R-ZE—=%+=-_A=+—H"' &k
BEBYERYBRERBENE A K

follows: PEMT
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FH T FHET

Property, plant and equipment M- BB KRR

— Contracted for — B34 134,653
— Authorised but not contracted for — BHEERETL 241,727
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As noted in note 16, the Guarantors has issued a
guarantee to a bank in respect of a bank loan granted to
Guangzhou Yinglong during the year ended 31
December 2013.

The directors do not consider it probable that a claim will
be made against the Guarantors under this guarantee
arrangement as Guangzhou Yinglong has sufficient
working capital to meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due after considering the expected net
cash flow from future operating activities. The maximum
liability of the Guarantors as at 31 December 2013 under
the guarantee arrangement is the amount of the facilities
drawn down by Guangzhou Yinglong of
HKD254,380,000 (equivalent to RMB200,000,000).

No deferred income in respect of this guarantee issued
has been recognised as its fair value was considered
immaterial.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

The directors are of the view that related parties of the

Group include the following individuals/companies:

Name of related party

B S &

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

SEEREASENEH FBENATA
+ /A7) :

Relationship with the Group
HEASENREER

Mr. Tsui Cham To
mEBEE

Guangzhou Yinglong
&N & &

Guangzhou To Kee Enterprises Development
Group Limited (“Guangzhou To Kee”) (i)

BENEREXEZREBEARARTEMETZD O

Guangzhou Tian Tian Cleaning and Washing
Company Limited (“Tian Tian”) (i)
BINRRBRZEBEAR A E (TRXKX]D ()

Longmen Yagang Copper Company Limited
(“Longmen Copper”) (i)
EPIDMmERR AR ([FEPIMZED ()

Shenzhen Jialinyuan Water Technology

Company Limited (“Shenzhen Jialinyuan”) (i) & (i)
RYNEFRIRKBRHEER R A

(DRINMEFRR LD () R (i)

To Kee Holdings Limited (“To Kee Holdings”)
BREEERAA(NEREED

Controlling Shareholder
7R IR R

Associate of the Group
REE R E QA

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder
HIERBRRERESR

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder
HERKERERESR

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder
HERRREREAR

Effectively owned by the shareholder

of non-controlling interests of Huaihua Tianyuan

HIE(ERRIFZEREENRRERES

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder
HERKERERES
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Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

Name of related party
B S 28

Relationship with the Group
EAAREEAYBAR

Guangzhou Xizhou Dock Company Limited
(“Xizhou Dock”) (i)
BMEMIEEAR AR ([FEMIEFED ()

Guangyuan Zhongtao Textile Company Limited
(“Guangyuan Zhongtao”) (i)
BrdEm&aR Lm0 (TETHIED

Guangyuan Haitao Textile Company Limited
(“Guangyuan Haitao”) (i)
BraasmEmaRAr((BxEED)I()

Guangzhou Jintao Resource Recycling
Company Limited (“Guangzhou Jintao”) (i)
BMeEBEERMABERABTTEMEEDI

(i) The English translation of the names is for reference only.
The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

(i) The Group acquired the remaining 25% equity shares of
Huaihua Tianyuan on 10 January 2012. Shenzhen
Jialinyuan was no longer a related party thereafter. The
following disclosure of the related party transactions
related to Shenzhen Jialinyuan is for the period up to 9
January 2012.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HERBERERESR

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HERBRERES

Effectively owned by the Controlling Shareholder

HERERERES

Effectively owned by the Mr. Xu Shubiao

HERBERGHEEEERES

) HRXBRPEEHORFERZ2E-Z
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i
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

Key management personnel (@ FEEEEAEMS
compensation
Key management personnel compensation FEEHEAEMESRE
comprised:
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT TFET
Salaries and other benefits e kEAMEAR 1,263
Retirement scheme of defined FE R RETE
contribution 40
1,303
Recurring transactions b) BREMERS
Particulars of significant transactions between the BE_T—=F+=-A=+—H
Group and the above related parties during the WEFE - REBE il B85 AT
year ended 31 December 2013 are as follows: EITHERRSHFBOAT :
2013 2012
—_E—=F —E——-F
HKD’000 HKD’000
F#& T FBT
Provision of wastewater processing 55 7K i I AR 7%
service
— Tian Tian — KK 5,187

The above related party transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are
provided in the paragraph headed “Continuing
connected transactions” of the section headed
“Report of the Directors” of this annual report.

PRI XZBXEEH AR
ZRBARARAES LRI LE
MR A FV4AT T RE DB
ERS - EMARAB14ATR
EHRBEZIEAFRIEFTES R
SIEHNRHEREXZIA-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(ABTTIR - S B ERAEERI)

(c) Non-recurring transactions

) kEEMERS

2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FERT FAT
Renting office from HEHAE
— To Kee Holdings — Bk 142
Acquisition of non-controlling BUREHUWE
interests from IR E R
— Shenzhen Jialinyuan — RINERR 10,427
Current accounts to the Group from: LNTIEHFERAERH
TRER :
— Guangzhou To Kee — BEMER 233,346
— Longmen Copper — B —
— the Controlling Shareholder — AR R 40,394
— Guangzhou Yinglong —EMAE 2,518
— Xizhou Dock — MR 6,146
— Guangzhou Jintao —EM&3 —
— Guangyuan Haitao — B8 E -
— Guangyuan Zhongtao — BMFAE —
282,404

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

(c) Non-recurring transactions (Continued)

(c) FREEUERZ |

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
HKD’000 HKD’000
TER FAT

Current accounts from the Group to: LA T & 75 & 7~ & B /Y

ERERE :

— Guangzhou To Kee — BEMEER 295,879
— Guangzhou Yinglong — EMERE 6,146
— Longmen Copper — BEFIIR 2,801
— Xizhou Dock — MR 6,145
— the Controlling Shareholder — AR R 82,515
— To Kee Holdings — Bk 92
— Guangzhou Jintao —EM&E -
— Guangyuan Haitao — ETAEE -
— Guangyuan Zhongtao — BETH A -
393,578

The Guarantors has issued a guarantee to a bank
in respect of a bank loan obtained by Guangzhou

Yinglong (note 16).

REAERBEMNBERSOHRT
A — [ 4R 17 % R (9 &

5
=N

16) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBTINR - S BERERRIN)

(d) Balances with related parties (d) EEEEE S WAk
() Amounts due from related parties (i) FEUREEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —EF—_F
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FAET
Trade receivables from: BWATEETESRIE
— Tian Tian — KX 2,010
Other receivables from: HaEUW AT & A RE
— Guangzhou To Kee — EMER 141,939
— Longmen Copper — BEFT 8 % 2,810
— Guangzhou Yinglong — EMNAERE 6,710
153,469
(i) Amounts due to related parties (i) FEASEAEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —E-CZF
HKD’000 HKD’000
FET FAET
Other payables to: HoAh e 5 LA TR & 5 3118
— Guangzhou To Kee — EMER 13,048
— the Controlling Shareholder ~ — #%& J& % 5 1,872
14,920
The balances with these related parties are HZEMB TN RERES
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed A . 8 | MEEE(E
repayment terms. EHR o

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTIES

The directors consider the immediate controlling party
as at 31 December 2013 to be Keen Vast Holding
Limited (AEZEARABRAF]), while the ultimate
controlling party of the Company as at 31 December
2013 to be Mr. Tsui Cham To.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, the key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

(i) Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into BOT arrangements in
wastewater treatment. The Group concluded that
the BOT arrangements are service concession
arrangements under HK(IFRIC) 12, because the
local government controls and regulates the
services that the Group must provide with the
infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge.
In addition, upon expiry of concession right
agreement, the infrastructure has to be transferred
to the local government at nil consideration.

(i) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews periodically the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

31

32

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

EERERERTS

EERB/ R-F-—=Ft+t=-A=+
—HMEEZRRTBREAZRARA
Al MARRAR-_F-—Z=ZF+=A=
T BEMERERL RFEERE -

E XS5 R ¥ E

ERAASEESTHRRE
EMONEZRIRMOTN

fi 3t

() BRBISFFEZH

AREEBRHESKEREBE L
BOTLH - ASERABEMBBOTL
FEB(ERE (AR BRERES
Be)R2B)F12 TR IEFF
2B A B BT H B
EAERE MAEBNYERTE
ERBEREEBER - I
ERTKEEREAIRE BA
EMERSEEEEM T BT -

(i) e

ME - WEERENRMGEEAER
FHARLH REARBERRR
BERRETE - AEEEHRATE
EWﬂ@%i%&Eﬂﬁﬁ@@u
B) o mBEBMTHRENE

ARBMEANFERE TARE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTLIR - X BERAERIN

32 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 32 =E K€ :t{4it & ¥ & @)
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii) Impairment (i) A

In considering the impairment losses that may be ERETYMHE BERRE &
required for certain property, plant and equipment, NHESAEEEEREENRERIE
lease prepayments, recoverable amount of these B AETRFEE E’J CIR e
assets needs to be determined. The recoverable o Al W B & %ﬁ BEEEHEHEH
amount is the greater of the net selling price and EMEZRSE - AR KR YR
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate SHEZEEENTERE - W
selling price because quoted market prices for HUBEELTEE-EEFRE
these assets may not be readily available. In B EEBEERHRELANIR S
determining the value in use, expected cash flows HEMIREHEBE ZTEHEXE
generated by the asset are discounted to their K ERKEK  NEBRH/EL S
present value, which requires significant judgment KA e AEBSER—4Y) 0B
relating to items such as level of turnover and B BEETHEERBKERELSE
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all KRAEBEEZAEBBEERESH
readily available information in determining an ZBRENFEE -

amount that is reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of items such as
turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are RERBEBEKLEEREBYE
assessed and provided based on the 2 AT 89 E B dm &Y K mT Uk [ 14 /9 BT
management’s regular review of ageing analysis HETHFHAEE BB EALET
and evaluation of collectability. A considerable level HEEREHMERIR L BT WIER
of judgment is exercised by the management when SOEEREY KRS M E o it E
assessing the credit worthiness and past collection B8 R I Nk R 4 @ & £ oK K Hf
history of each individual customer. An increase or MR EE °

decrease in the above impairment losses would
affect the profit or loss in future periods.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments, and a new
standard which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2013 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

33

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

RBE-ZE—=F+=ZH=+

—BIEFEDEAENREN
ST - SRR 2B 0 &
5@

BEAMBHRRTIEAY FB G
ARG ERMEZIBMERT R ER -
ZEMETRHENRBE_T—=
FT+_A=+—HILFERRER
HEMBRRTERBEZFNETR
FrAER - AT 23 A B B AN &= E AR B 1Y
BRAER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BEA 2 &BBRHN
SHHBEXR

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27, Investment entities

1 January 2014

BEWHRELENF105 BAEVHREEME 125 L EF LS %R

FATHRZERT A KREEE

Amendments to HKAS 32, Financial instruments. Presentation — Offsetting

financial assets and financial liabilities

BB ERERRK B 2@ TA: 25 - cHEERHARE

HE R H

Amendments to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for

non-financial assets

BRGERER ZER FLHEEZ KL EERE

Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation

of hedge accounting

BB B ERIEIORZER  ITETAZCEERE P& E LR

HK(FRIC) 21, Levies
AR (BABRUBEREZ2BEZES)RBE21H & &

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits: Defined benefit plans:

Employee contribution

BB ERNEW - ELSFN  REEFIGE - R HHL

—ZE-HWHF—-H—H

1 January 2014

—FT—mWF—H—H

1 January 2014

—ZE-HWHF—H—H

1 January 2014

—FT—mWF—H—H

1 January 2014
—ET-—mFE—H—H

1 July 2014

—T—mWE+H—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Bt 35 88 R DM & (4R)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RABTIR - S BEHERIN)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 33

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013 (Continued)

RBEE-ZE—=F+=ZH=+
—BHBLEFECHEMGERMEKREN
MIEE] - FTER RZEN IR

/ ==
S & )

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RO BEA 2 & BRI
SIHHBER

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
ERBUMBEREER —_E—FFE_FT—_FRPZFRENE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
BB REER _—_E——FE_FT——FRAHZFRENE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (2009)
BEEMBRELERNEISR HMELA(ZZEZENF)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (2010)
BEAMBHRELERNESR HMEILTA(ZE—FF)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Financial instruments and HKFRS 7,
Financial instruments: Disclosures — Mandatory effective date
and transition disclosures

BEMBRELRNEISRZER]  WETARBEEHFHREERETI

MBETAR RE—BHEMAHRERERE

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments: Hedge accounting and amendments to

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39 (2013)

BN EREENFIR HHFE LA HHETEREENEHREEA

FOUE BB BIHREENETEREE S ERFE3959 2
(ZE—=4)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED HEIRREBERA A

1 July 2014
—F—WHFEt+H—H

1 July 2014
—F—WHFEt+H—H

Unspecified

ks

Unspecified

ks

Unspecified

RIEH

Unspecified

K45 A

£5T

AEBEEEFEZEEITEEEER
HREHEEANTE - Brl - ARER
REMZEFET FHERBREAKR
ARERAREMLEE XA LB KRR
ELXBEARE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A 35 8 R P & (48)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

33 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2013 (Continued)

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation from the Company’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
company’s financial year which will begin on 1 January
2015) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance.
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has
concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant
and will primarily only affect the presentation and
disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements.

33 REE=-F—=5+-A

(AETTIR - S B ERAEFKRI)

—BIEFECEMGEYRE
B9 {5 5T - 57 % B % 22 58 9 T ¢

A B e
S & )

=]

ok - R AR 5 B FE 35815 - ST EE R A
RPIEe22E LRIt RE I 2R
ERARBBE_FT-—NE=ZA=HE
MG EEMBRFERE(MARRB-F
—hAFE-A-BHENFRERE)RRE
e REBEENEARIGIAESHHE
RERFURHENGEEMBERROE
Z-BEENALBENGERAS FE
TEAKR BXEFEFAMBRE
FRE &R r 5 3R R I o
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The following table summarizes the consolidated results,
assets and liabilities of the Group for the four years ended 31

MEFENGEaRE EERRE:

December:
2013 2012 2011 2010
—E—= —F——-F —F——F —ZF-FF
HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000 HKD’000
TET FETT FE T FET
Results E
Turnover - 383,806 462,260 361,444
Profit before taxation & 5% B Sz A 213,490 203,662 151,258
Income tax FTiS i 36,140 38,392 24,956
Profit attributable to equity 7N A &) #E 5
holders of the Company A AFE(G SR 177,229 164,514 120,874
Assets BE
Non-current assets FREBEE 844,961 662,173 296,336
Current assets hENEE 296,469 222,005 419,101
Total assets BEBMTE 1,141,430 884,178 715,437
Liabilities AafE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 553,561 448,449 313,314
Current liabilities mEaE 195,967 211,736 147,121
Total liabilities BEesE 749,528 660,185 460,435
Total equity s MR 391,902 223,993 255,002
Total equity attributable ZAN/NECIE
to equity holders A AEG
of the Company "= B R 390,338 214,558 247,464

CT ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED #ERREBHBR AR
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